
NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
FULL COMMISSION MEETING 
April 18, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. 

NIRPC Lake Michigan Room, 6100 Southport Road, Portage 

1.0 Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance – Tom Dermody 

2.0 New Appointments to the Commission – Attorney Dave Hollenbeck 

3.0 Roll Call – Candice Eklund 

4.0 Public Comment on Current Agenda Items 
Members of the audience who have signed up to comment on agenda items will be recognized by the 
Chair.  Time is limited to 3 minutes per commenter. 

5.0 Approval of the Minutes of the March 21, 2024, Executive Board Meeting (pp. 1-3) 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval  

6.0 Report of the Chair – Tom Dermody 
6.1 Committee Restructuring (pp. 4-5) 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval  

7.0 Report of the Executive Director - Ty Warner 
7.1 Presentation by NWI Food Council, Co-Executive Directors:  Anne Massie and Virginia Pleasant 

8.0 Finance and Personnel Committee (F&P) – Wendy Mis (pp. 6-7) 

9.0 Technical Planning Committee (TPC) - Kevin Breitzke (pp. 8-61) 
9.1 Resolution #24-05: FY 2025-2026 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), Tom Vander Woude 

(pp. 11-61) 
ACTION REQUESTED: Adoption 

10.0 NIRPC Economic Development District Report - Denarie Kane 

11.0 INDOT, Matt Deitchley, La Porte District Deputy Commissioner 

12.0 Other Business 

13.0 Announcements 

14.0 Adjournment 
The next meeting on June 20, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. will be an Executive Board meeting. 

6100 Southport Road 
Portage, Indiana 46368 

(219) 763-6060
www.nirpc.org



            NIRPC Executive Board Meeting  
6100 Southport Road, Portage, IN 

March 18, 2024 Minutes 

Call to Order 
Chair Tom Dermody called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.  The meeting was 
streamed live on YouTube.   

New Appointments to the Commission 
Dave Hollenbeck announced the appointments to the Commission of Mayor Eddie Melton (Gary) and Mayor 
Angie Nelson Deitch (Michigan City). 

Roll call - Taken by Candice Eklund. 

Present 
The 8 Executive Board members present at the meeting included Kevin Breitzke (Porter County Surveyor), 
Tom Dermody (La Porte), Bill Emerson (Lake County Surveyor), Justin Kiel (La Porte County Council), Wendy 
Mis (Munster), Lisa Rosenkranz (LaCrosse), Tom Schmitt (Schererville), and Jim Ton (Chesterton).   

The 8 other Commissioners present at the meeting included James Burge (Porter), Robert Carnahan (Cedar 
Lake), Eddie Melton (Gary), Angie Nelson Deuitch (Michigan City), David Phelps (Beverly Shores), Mary Tanis 
(Dyer), George Topoll (Union Township), and Andy Vasquez.  Also present was Matt Deitchley representing INDOT. 

Absent 
The 2 Executive Board members absent from the meeting included Denise Ebert (Wanatah) and Jim Pressel 
(Governor Appointee). 

Hebron, Kingsbury, The Pines, Trail Creek, and Valparaiso have appointed no representatives to NIRPC. 

Staff present included Ty Warner, Tom Vander Woude, Charles Bradsky, Kevin Polette, Candice Eklund, and 
attorney Dave Hollenbeck. 

Public Comment – There were no public comments. 

Approval of Minutes 
The minutes of the February 15, 2024, Executive Board meeting were approved on motion by Jim Ton and 
seconded by Kevin Breitzke. 

Report of the Chair – Tom Dermody 
Tom Dermody reported on the meeting he had with Ty Warner to discuss restructuring NIRPC committees to 
make them more efficient and build attendance.  Tom said he will be contacting the Commissioners who have 
not consistently attended the NIRPC Commission meetings to discuss if it would be in the best interest of the 
Commission to appoint another elected official.  Tom would also like to engage with the rail community as a 
potential partner to discuss changes when it comes to railroad crossings and engaging with local communities’ 
issues.  The goal is to have conversations with them by summer and hopefully have them attend meetings to 
provide updates and address the rail crossings issues. 

Report of the Executive Director - Ty Warner 
Ty Warner appreciated Mayor Dermody taking up the issue of railroads again, adding NIRPC had a Rail 
Crossing Task Force that held four meetings in 2018.  Ty noted the topic of blocked crossings and rail in 
general was one of the legislative items that was taken to the congressional visits at the NARC conference 
held in Washington, D.C. last month. 

Ty further discussed restructuring NIRPC’s committees with an updated slideshow presentation from 2021.  
NIRPCs structure is written into Indiana State Code that has an enabling statute laying out the agency’s 
mission, purpose, and board structure.  NIRPC develops plans and programs for: Transportation, Environment, 
and Economic Development.  The current committee structure is made up of 14 NIRPC Committees, and they 
are faced with challenges in attendance and various degrees of involvement, and also require significant staff 

1



time in agenda preparation and drafting of minutes.  The proposal is to streamline NIRPCs Committee 
structure to basically have four mission areas: Transportation, Environment, Economy & Place, and 
Leadership.  NWI 2050 already focused on these four areas, and NIRPC’s website has been organized around 
this structure for some time.  Mayor Dermody is in support of this initiative.  Restructuring NIRPC’s 
Committees will need the approval of the Full Commission. Justin Kiel questioned where the Transportation 
Resource Oversight Committee (TROC) would fall in this plan.  Ty stated that TROC has been an established 
and effective group and TROC would probably remain as the means of primary input for available 
transportation funding.  It was also discussed that “proxies” might be allowed at these committees, whereas 
they are not allowed on the Commission itself as NIRPC’s enabling statute does not provide for this.  

Ty discussed House Bill 1120.  NIRPC is governed by state statute and part of that statute sets the local 
match amount that NIRPC receives from individual counties.  The per capita amount NIRPC receives from the 
counties – which NIRPC uses for its own local match for Federal funding for its MPO functions -- has not 
changed since it was instituted in 1992.  The House Bill 1120, approved at the close of the 2024 Session of 
the Indiana General Assembly. increases the $0.70 per capita to $1.50 over a five year period.  Warner is 
grateful to Representative Hal Slager, who introduced the initial bill to the Indiana General Assembly and, 
three bills later, it was amended into House Bill 1120, where it was approved with no pushback.  Warner also 
expressed his gratitude to the counties for being supportive of the increase.  He thanked Justin Kiel, La Porte 
County Council; Andy Vasquez, Porter County Council; and Randy Niemeyer of the Lake County Council for 
helping obtain the endorsement of all three counties.  This local share amount is necessary for NIRPC to 
function and to have access to additional federal funding. House Bill 1120 effectively right-sizes to near-
current dollar value what was put into place in 1992.   

Warner discussed the Walkable USA documentary that focuses on the plan for downtown Hammond and 
shared that it would be airing again on Lakeshore Public Media.  It will be on Lake Shore PBS on March 22 at 
4 pm and March 29 at 9 pm and PBS Michiana on March 28 at 8pm EST. There will also be an in-person 
screening at the South Shore Convention and Visitors Building on April 2. A notification will be sent to the 
Commissioners after the meeting with a registration link. 

Warner noted that, as he had discussed last year at this time, there will be a Solar Eclipse on April 8 at 1:30 pm  
and the State of Indiana has encouraged communities to be prepared for an influx of tourists in order to avoid the 
myriad problems that were a result of the influx of people during the last solar eclipse.  

Finance & Personnel Committee (F & P) – Wendy Mis 
Wendy Mis thanked Ty Warner and the efforts of everyone involved in getting House Bill 1120 passed.  As head 
of the F&P Committee, it is very important and helps them as they look at the upcoming budget.  Wendy Mis 
reported the F&P Committee met this morning to review financial reports, bank reconciliations, and claim 
registers for December 2023 and January 2024.  The F&P Committee voted to approve a presentation at the 
Full Commission meeting on April 18 to recommend a resolution to NIRPC’s General Assembly to address the 
cost of the State Board of Accounts (SBOA) audits to our local units and ask for detailed invoicing from the 
SBOA.   

Resolution #24-04:  Authorizing Payment of Remaining Non-Award Funds in the La Porte County Revolving 
Loan Fund to La Porte, Indiana, and Michigan City, Indiana, and cessation of the La Porte County Revolving 
Loan Fund Program for New Loans – Wendy Mis reported the F&P Committee heard a presentation from 
Denarie Kane who answered all of their questions satisfactorily and the committee approved this resolution 
with a favorable recommendation.  On motion by Bill Emerson and seconded by Jim Ton, the Executive Board 
approved Resolution 24-04. 

Technical Planning Committee (TPC) - Kevin Breitzke 
Kevin Breitzke requested the next TPC meeting be held on April 9 instead of April 2, 2024.  Breitzke also 
referenced the article that was written by Ty Warner, “NIRPC projects have transformed NWI” that was published 
in The Times on March 10, 2024.   

Charles Bradsky reported on the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) workshop for newly elected and 
appointed officials.  The topics covered for transportation projects were NIRPC’s organizational structure, its 
responsibilities and roles in regional planning and transportation funding, the various federal and state funds 

2



available for transportation funding, and the timelines and administrative requirement for federal-aid 
transportation projects.  The meeting materials and link to the video will be sent to the Commissioners. 

Tom Vander Woude provided updates and timelines on the lifecycles of NWI 2050+ and the 2024-2028 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) approval because the two items were approved conditionally at the 
Commission meeting last month.  Tom provided the background on why those were approved conditionally and 
gave an update on where we are now on meeting those conditions and status of final approvals.  The two 
processes were conducted simultaneously while also updating NIRPCs travel demand model used to 
demonstrate our Air Quality Conformity.  NIRPC cannot invest in projects that create more pollution than the EPA 
allots them.  As of March 19, 2024, the FHWA initiated the formal consultation, asking all of the other relevant 
agencies to comment on our Air Quality Conformity Determination in our NWI 2050+ and FY 2024-2028 TIP.  
The deadline for comments from that group is April 15 and if no comments are received, the FHWA will issue a 
conformity determination letter and the NWI 2050+ and the 2024-2028 TIP will be in effect.  

INDOT – Matt Deitchley 
Matt Deitchley reported INDOT has a robust program for construction season.  They are also working very hard 
to remove the construction project restrictions, as they are able, during the total solar eclipse on April 8.  
Deitchley relayed that Commissioner Mike Smith, INDOT, had discussed the state’s initiative, INDOT: Buckle Up 
Phone Down, at the Purdue Road School last week.  This movement is to help reduce injury crashes and 
fatalities on Indiana’s roadways by 25% over the next 10 years.  As part of the statewide safety summer 
initiative, the La Porte District Safety Summit will be held on May 29 this year. 

At the Executive Board meeting last month, it was requested INDOT provide a presentation on their I-80/94 
Borman Expressway FlexRoad project that was awarded a mega grant of $217 million in federal funding.  Toby 
Randolph, Sr. Director with Parsons, presented a project update and discussed the Traffic Systems Management 
and Operations (TSMO) strategies.  This is one of the busiest corridors in Indiana and extends from Illinois 394 to 
I-65.  The goal of the project is to improve traffic flow and safety and reduce crashes and accidents that currently
occur every day along this corridor.  Construction will begin late 2026 and last up to two years.  The goal is to
maximize safety and efficiency along the existing corridor within the existing footprint.  A few of the strategies
discussed were dynamic shoulder lanes / lane control, variable speed limits, ramp metering, real time queue
warning and event management.  It is anticipated public meetings will be held this summer.  For project
strategies, visit 80/94 FlexRoad - Home (indianaflexroad.com).  To submit questions or comments go to
Customer Service Portal - Customer Support (service-now.com).

Other Business 
Bob Carnahan raised questions regarding various lane or bridge closures in the region.  Matt Deitchley noted 
a complete listing of lane closures can be found at IN.gov | The Official Website of the State of Indiana.  Mary 
Tanis announced there will be a presentation on the Monon Corridor tonight at the Dyer Town Hall.  David 
Phelps raised a question regarding the safety of the bike path at the start of Michigan City that comes onto 
US 12.  Mitch Barloga offered to speak with David further after the meeting. 

Announcements 
Bob Carnahan relayed announcements of various events in Cedar Lake and Lake County. 

Adjournment  
Hearing no other business, Tom Dermody adjourned the meeting at 10:36 a.m. The next meeting on April 18, 
2024, will be a Full Commission meeting. 

The livestream video recording of this meeting is available on NIRPC’s YouTube Channel at 
Executive Board Meeting 2-15-24 (youtube.com) 

3

https://www.in.gov/indot/bupd/
https://www.in.gov/indot/bupd/
https://indianaflexroad.com/
https://indottscc.service-now.com/csm
https://www.in.gov/core/index.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=SAZ51kaMzHM&t=912s


2015 NIRPC Committee Structure:

4



2024 NIRPC Committee Structure:

TRANSPORTATION ENVIRONMENT ECONOMY 
& PLACE

LEADERSHIP

• Environmental
Management &
Policy (EMPC)

• Surface Transportation
• Ped, Pedal, Paddle
• Technical Planning (TPC)

• Land Use
• Local Government

Assistance

• Finance & Personnel
• Legislative
• Outreach

Replaces: Replaces: Replaces: Replaces:

5



NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING 
COMMISSION FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

January 18, 2024 / NIRPC Dune Room – 8:00 a.m. 

Members present 
Bob Carnahan, Don Craft, Tom Dermody, George Topoll 

Staff and others present 
Ty Warner, Talaya Jones, Darin Sherman, Lisa Todd, Charles, Bradsky, Meredith Stilwell, David 
Hollenbeck 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
In Chairperson Mis’s absence, Commission called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. 

Approval of Minutes 
Quorum was reached and the minutes of the December 7, 2023 meeting were presented. On motion by 
Don Clark, second by George Topoll and no opposition, the minutes were approved.  

Review of Financial Status – November 2023 Budget vs Actual 
Talaya Jones presented the November 2023 bank reconciliations for the NIRPC general account, the 
CARES Revolving Loan Fund account, and the Revolving Loan Fund Account. 

Talaya presented the November 2023 general fund financial reports. Total expenditures for the period 
ending November 30, 2023, were $5,815,983 of the $16,169,219 budgeted. finally received the 2023 
utility invoices from the City of Portage for January through October. Talaya noted that the NIPSCO 
October bill is still needed. Total general fund revenue for the period was $1,975,079 of the 
$4,434,925 budgeted.  

Talaya presented the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Securities (CARES) Act financial reports, year 
to date November 2023. Total NIRPC CARES fund expenditures for the period ending November 30, 
2023, was $23,714 of the $162,250 budgeted. Total CARES revenue collected for the period was 
$23,896 of the $150,368 budgeted. 

Approval of Claims Registers – November 2023 
Talaya presented the November 2023 General Fund claims register totaling $926,243.53 to the 
Committee for approval. On motion by Bob Carnahan, second by George Topoll and no opposition, the 
General Fund register of claims in the amount of $926,243.53 was approved.  

Marquette Greenway Contract 
Charles Bradsky presented the Marquette Greenway contract to the Committee for recommendation for 
approval to the NIRPC Executive Board. Charles explained that an update to the contract in the meeting 
packets was received from INDOT the night before the meeting. The updated contract now reflects their 
template and scope and the financial portion reduced. Due to receiving it so late, Attorney Hollenbeck 
had not yet had time to review the contract, but Procurement Manager Lisa Todd informed the 
Committee that the facts of the contract are the same. This contract serves to engage engineering firm, 
Butler, Fairman and Seufert, Inc. to provide project management services for the design portion of the 
Gary and Portage sections of the Marquette Greenway and project development services for Michigan 
City and New Buffalo Township sections of the Marquette Greenway. On motion by George Topoll, 
second by Don Craft and no opposition, contingent on approval by NIRPC legal counsel and final 
approval by Federal Highway and INDOT, the Committee recommended the Marquette Greenway 
Contract to the NIRPC Executive Board for approval. 

NIRPC Building Lease 
Given the lease could not be tied up by December 31st, it was decided to allow a 30-day extension. It 
was noted that the City of Portage is now under new administration, and they needed to get up to speed 
on the lease issues. One of the large impediments was the request by NIRPC for a comprehensive mold 
analysis, which has now been settled. The condition of the parking lot was addressed, and it was also 
requested to include the common area upkeep in the lease. On motion by George Topoll, second by 

6



Justin Kiel, and no opposition, it was recommended to ask the NIRPC Board for approval to delegate Ty 
and Dave the authority until the end of the month to wrap up and sign the lease. 

Personnel updates 
None 

Other Business 
George Topoll relayed that Porter County Aging and Community Services reached out to him regarding 
the issues of getting buses. Lisa Todd explained that improvement is being seen, but prices have 
doubled and therefore local share would be doubled. 

Ty presented the Committee with handouts regarding the attempt to increase local share from the 
Counties. House Bill No. 1251, based on NIRPC Resolution 23-16 approved in December and which 
would allow for the increase, has been filed in the Ways and Means Committee by Representative Hal 
Slager. As previously mentioned, Representative Slager wants to know whether the Counties are on 
board with the increase. The Bill needs to move out of Ways and Means by January 24 and while La 
Porte County has already given support, there have been challenges with the timing of Lake and Porter 
County meetings. Help is needed from the Commissioners to reach out to their fellow elected officials. 
Mayor Dermody stressed that you need to get attention by showing what are the losses to the 
communities if the bill does not pass. Commissioner Kiel suggested putting together a template letter to 
give to the mayors that they could send to their councils to sign. He also suggested convening a 
committee of all the counties and having people ready to go to Indianapolis to speak on the Bill.  

The next Finance & Personnel Committee meeting is scheduled for February 15, 2024. 

Adjournment 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:57 a.m. 

7



Technical Planning Committee 
NIRPC Lake Michigan Room 

YouTube Recording:  
Technical Planning Committee Meeting 2-6-24 (youtube.com) 

February 6, 2024 
Minutes 

Kevin Breitzke called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.  

In attendance were Kevin Breitzke (Porter County), Max Rehlander (Valparaiso), Ryan Lisek 
(DCI), Lisa Shrader (INDOT), George Topoll (Union Township), Beth Shrader (Valpo Transit), 
Dean Button (Hammond), and David Wright (GPTC). 

Also in attendance were Mike Jabo, Paul Heuring, Steve King, and Jake Dammarell. 

 Jeff Huet (Schererville), Tom Schmitt (Schererville), Chris Murphy, Bob Thompson, Eric 
Wolverton, Alex Olesker, Elizabeth (last name unknown), and Terry (last name unknown). 

NIRPC staff present were Tom Vander Woude, Mitch Barloga, Scott Weber, Grace Benninger, 
Charles Bradsky, Kevin Polette, and Flor Baum. 

On motion by George Topoll, second by Dean Button, the Technical Planning Committee (TPC) 
approved the minutes of January 9, 2024 as presented.   

There were no public comments. 

Planning 
Scott Weber presented on the Final Draft of NWI 2050+ Roads Chapter.  Six visions were 
discussed: Connected, United, Renewed, Vibrant, Equitable, and Safe.  The vision of a 
Connected region states, “NWI’s people have accessible, safe, and equal opportunities for 
working, playing, living and learning.”  The goal for Connected is to complete roadway, bicycle, 
sidewalk, and transit networks across municipal and county lines to enhance safe and 
efficient access to opportunities for all.  The four objectives of Connected are as follows:  

• The roadway network in Northwest Indiana adequately covers the region and affords
roadway users sufficient mobility and accessibility.

• The roadway network in Northwest Indiana balances opportunities for working, playing,
living, and learning in the region.

• The roadway network extent in Northwest Indiana is not itself a major contributor to
congestion.

• The roadway network in Northwest Indiana fosters connections between communities
without imposing barriers.

The vision of a United region states, “NWI’s diversity is celebrated, and we work together as a 
community across racial, ethnic, political and cultural lines for the mutual benefit of the 
region.” The goal is to prioritize transformative investments to elevate the position of the 
region and to attract a diversity of residents and high-quality economic opportunities.  The two 
objectives are the following:  

• Northwest Indiana’s residents are able to access jobs both within and outside the
region, and Northwest Indiana’s jobs attract talent from both within and outside the
region.

• Leaders deploy Travel Demand Management (TDM) strategies and transformative
Transportation Systems Management and Operations (TSMO) investments in the
region.

8

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=z6HTCt12H0E&list=PLp5QHcpiY0I6cqE_7Gwnfwt8d1RVtt_Gl&index=1


The vision of a Renewed region states, “NWI’s urban and rural centers are places people want 
to come to and live in, and our environment is safe and healthy.”  The goal is to improve 
roadways, bikes, sidewalk, and transit networks to revitalize existing urban and rural centers 
and enhance equity.  The two objectives are as follows:  

• Leaders prioritize maintaining roadway and highway pavements in satisfactory
condition in the Northwest Indiana region.  Pavement quality tends to be poorer in
urban areas than rural areas.  Yet the region has been awarded over $125M in CCMG
(2022).

• Leaders prioritize maintaining bridges in a state of good repair in the Northwest
Indiana region.

The vision of a Vibrant region states, “NWI’s economy is thriving, our people are well educated, 
growth is planned, and natural and agricultural areas are valued and protected.”  The goal is to 
adopt technological innovation that enhances the safe and fluid movement of people and 
goods to enable a flourishing economy.  The three objectives are as follows:  

• The Northwest Indiana region is prepared to transition to Electric Vehicles (EVs) by
ensuring that residents have the means to access EVs and that EV charging
infrastructure is adequately and equitably distributed across the region.

• Northwest Indiana residents and freight carriers can expect to travel at reliable and
safe speeds on the region’s roadway network.

• Leaders effectively manage congestion on the region’s roadway network to ensure that
people and goods move fluidly to sustain a flourishing economy.

Feedback from planning and public involvement processes in the NWI 2050+ development 
effort led to a vision for an Equitable NWI region to seek fairness in access to resources and 
opportunities to meet the needs of all community members.  The goal is to seek to distribute 
access to the region’s roadway network equitably and justly as well as ensure that leaders 
invest in improvements to roadways equitably and justly.  The two objectives are as follows:  

• Leaders invest in projects and other improvements to the roadway network equitably
and justly, not unduly benefiting or burdening certain communities at the expense of
others.

• Leaders seek to ensure that Northwest Indiana region households have more equal
access to vehicles.

Feedback from planning and public involvement processes in the NWI 2050+ development 
effort also led to a vision for a Safe NWI to reduce and mitigate roadway safety and security 
risks.  The goal is to ensure that the region’s roadways operate as safely as possible, with the 
guiding principle that any fatality on the roads or highways is one too many.  The three goals 
for Safe are as follows:  

• Leaders seek to reduce crashes on the region’s roadways.
• Leaders seek to reduce injuries on the region’s roadways.
• Leaders seek to eliminate fatalities on the region’s roadways.

No questions or comments were received.  For more information, please contact Scott at 
sweber@nirpc.org.  

Programming 
Charles Bradsky spoke on Res 24-03: TIP Amendment 24-01 which was released for a 21-day 
public comment period that began on January 12, 2024 through February 2, 2024.  
Comments were received from the Interagency Consultation Group (ICG) and from FHWA, and 
NIRPC staff responded to the comments.  The NWI 2050+ was approved back on July 20, 
2023.  However, approval has been on hold by INDOT and USDOT, pending FHWA approval of 
the Air Quality Conformity Determination (AQCD), a requirement for the Region as being 
designated non-attainment for ozone under the Clean Air Act by the US EPA.  AQCD is slated 

9

mailto:sweber@nirpc.org


for approval in March.  FHWA has advised NIRPC staff to begin the process of amending, upon 
contingency of approval.  A summary of projects in TIP Amendment 24-01 were presented and 
are as follows: 10 new INDOT projects and 16 INDOT projects with a funding increase.  21 
locally sponsored projects include the following:  

• 11 new projects for East Chicago, Hammond, Hobart, La Porte, Merrillville, Michigan
City, La Porte County, Porter County, and for NIRPC.

• Four changes in funding for projects in Chesterton, Michigan City, Schererville, and
Porter County.

• Five projects with added phases in Gary, Michigan City, Valparaiso, and Lake County.
• One eliminated project in Gary.

On motion by David Wright, second by Dean Button, the TPC approved to recommend Res 24-
03 to the Commission, contingent upon official approval of the FY 24-28 TIP by INDOT and 
USDOT.   

Scott Weber presented on Res 24-02: Adoption of Air Quality Conformity Determination for NWI 
2050+ which was released for a 30-day public comment period that began on January 5, 
2024 and ended February 4, 2024.  A public meeting was also held on January 30, 2024.  No 
public comments were received.  As stated previously, the NWI 2050+ was approved back in 
July 20, 2023.  However, approval has been on hold by INDOT and USDOT, pending FHWA 
approval of the AQCD, a requirement for the Region as being designated non-attainment for 
ozone under the Clean Air Act by the US EPA.  Approval of these core documents will be used 
to administer federal aid funding.  The AQCD report provided demonstrated compliance with 
the Clean Air Act Section 176©.  Implementing non-exempt projects will not cause a 
surpassing of the ozone precursors regulated in the Motor Vehicle Emissions Budgets (MVEB) 
in the SIP.  On-road mobile source emissions (NOx and VOC) that are projected to result from 
implementing the non-exempt, regionally significant projects in NWI 2050+ and FY 24-28 TIP 
is overseen by the ICG.  A summary table of on-road mobile source emissions and budgets was 
presented.  Emissions of NOx and VOC are at or below the MVEB in the Indiana SIP.  On motion 
by Dean Button, second by George Topoll, the TPC approved to recommend Res 24-02 to the 
Commission, upon contingency of the EPA not receiving adverse comments to the 2008 Ozone 
State Implementation Plan amendment.   

Staff Updates and Reports form Planning Partners 
Staff updates and announcements were made.  Drive Clean Indiana shared updates.  For 
more information, visit www.drivecleanindiana.org.   

Adjournment 
Hearing no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:56 a.m. 

The next TPC meeting is slated for March 5, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. in the NIRPC building.  

10

http://www.drivecleanindiana.org/


RESOLUTION 24-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION TO ADOPT THE 
FY 2025-2026 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM FOR LAKE, PORTER, AND LA PORTE COUNTIES, 

INDIANA 

APRIL 18, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission, hereafter referred to as “the 
Commission” being designated as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Lake, Porter, 
and La Porte County Metropolitan Planning Area, has established a comprehensive, cooperative, and 
continuing transportation planning process to develop the FY 2025-2026 Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP); and 

WHEREAS, the preparation of a UPWP is a necessary and required part of the metropolitan area 
transportation planning process as specified in 23 CFR 450.308; and by its State statutory authority, 
the Commission is charged with regional planning responsibility for the environment, economic 
development, and transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the FY 2025-2026 UPWP describes those planning activities to be undertaken by the 
Commission between July 1, 2024 and June 30, 2026, and identifies funding sources necessary to pay 
for those planning activities; and 

WHEREAS, the work tasks and budgets described within the Commission’s UPWP are coordinated with 
the programs and planning emphasis areas of the Federal Highway and Transit Administrations, and 
significant planning projects in the region by other agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the Technical Planning Committee has recommended that the Commission approve the FY 
2025-2026 UPWP; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission hereby adopts the FY 2025-2026 UPWP and 
the Commission is authorized to modify such agreements and contracts as may be required with the 
funding and administrative agencies for the execution of this UPWP, as required by the Indiana 
Department of Transportation (INDOT) or the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) or the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA). 

Duly adopted by the Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission on this 18th day of April 2024. 

ATTEST: Thomas Dermody 
Chairperson

 

 

Justin Kiel 
Secretary 

11



Technical Planning Committee Memo Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Technical Planning Committee 

From: Tom Vander Woude, Director of Transportation 

Date: March 27, 2024 

Re: Adoption of FY 2025-2026 Unified Planning Work Program 

Action Requested:  Recommendation to the Full Commission/Executive Board to  
approve the FY 2025-2026 UPWP by adopting Resolution 24-05 

Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission, as the federally designated and federally 

funded Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for Northwest Indiana, is required to annually 

develop a Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP). The UPWP serves as the following:  

• The federally- and state-approved work plan for MPO staff

• The program of planning tasks over next fiscal year (State calendar from July 1 to June 30)

• A financial planning document linking staff activities to funding sources.

In Indiana, each MPO adopts a two-year UPWP every other year with a major amendment occurring 

on the off years, which allows for continuity in planning activities across fiscal years.  

The UPWP reflects local and regional concerns by addressing major surface transportation issues 

facing Northwest Indiana and by implementing policies and strategies identified in NIRPC’s long-

range plan NWI 2050+. It also addresses priorities of federal funding agencies, including the 

requirements of the current transportation funding legislation (currently IIJA/BIL) and by Planning 

Emphasis Areas (PEAs) which are issued annually by the US Department of Transportation at both the 

national and state division level. The Indiana Division Office of Federal Highway Administration 

(FHWA) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Region V Office issued the following PEAs for FY 

2025:  

• Institutionalizing Equity, Accessibility, and Safety

• Maximizing Coordination

• Urbanized Area and Metropolitan Planning Area Boundaries

The UPWP is organized into the following sections, each of which incorporate the local, state, and 

national priorities into the core duties of the MPO:  

• 100: Administration

• 200: Data Collection & Analysis

• 300: Short-Range Planning

• 400: Long-Range Planning

6100 Southport Road 

Portage, Indiana 46368 

(219) 763-6060

www.nirpc.org

12



 

Technical Planning Committee Memo  Page 2 of 3 

• 500: Multi-Modal Planning 

• 600: Special Planning Activities 

• 700: FTA Sub-Recipient Oversight 

The UPWP is funded primarily by Federal Metropolitan Planning (PL) and Sec. 5303 transit planning 

funds, which are distributed through the Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT) to NIRPC 

according to a formula adopted by the Indiana MPO Council with concurrence from INDOT, FHWA, 

and FTA. In FY 2025, the UPWP is funded at $2,400,126 of which 80% is federal PL/5303 funds and 

20% is the required local match. This is shown in the chart below:  

FY 2025 PL Funding Only- NIRPC UPWP Budget Summary 

UPWP Section Task Group Name Funding 

Source 

Federal Share   

(FY 2025) 

Non-

Federal 

Share (FY 

2025) 

Total Costs         

(FY 2025) 

  

100 Administration & Public 

Participation 
 P

L
/
5

3
0

3
 (

IN
D

O
T
) 

 
$426,810 $106,702 $533,512 * 

200 Data Collection & Analysis $227,661 $56,915 $284,577 ** 

300 Short-Range Planning $234,914 $58,729 $293,643 ** 

400 Long-Range Planning $465,870 $116,467 $582,337 ** 

500 Multi-Modal Planning $200,527 $50,132 $250,659 ** 

500- Y410*** Multi-Modal Planning 2.5% 

Complete Streets Set Aside 

$48,003 $12,001 $60,003 *** 

600 Special Planning Activities $316,316 $79,079 $395,395 ** 

PL/5303 Total TOTAL 

  

$1,920,101 $480,025 $2,400,126   

*PL/5303 Non-Salary direct expenses such as travel, copies and printing for all task groups are budgeted under 100 

**Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs 

*** Complete Street Planning Activities- Increasing Safe and Accessible Transportation Options 

 

Nearly all of this budget is used for staff and overhead, with the exception of $5,000 set aside for 

Sensible Tools Handbook+ workshops and $314,000 set aside for LPA Planning Assistance. 

In addition to the PL/5303 funds, NIRPC has the option to “flex” funds from its Transportation 

Improvement Program into its planning program for specific purposes. NIRPC plans to flex Congestion 

Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds to cover its Air Quality Education program, Surface 

Transportation Block Grant (STBG) funds to cover the costs of the R-TIP programming software, and 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds to cover a consultant contract for Road Safety 

Audits in partnership with local governments. These are shown in the chart below:  

 

13



Technical Planning Committee Memo Page 3 of 3 

FY 2025 Flex Funding Only- NIRPC UPWP Budget Summary 

UPWP Section Task Group Name Funding 

Source 

Federal 

Share   (FY 

2025) 

Non-Federal 

Share (FY 

2025) 

Total Costs 

(FY 2025) 

300 Short-Range Planning  STBG $44,629 $11,157 $55,787 * 

600A Special Planning Activities  HSIP - Sec. 

164 

$77,500 $0 $77,500 ** 

600B Air Quality Public 

Education 

 CMAQ 

(INDOT) 

$360,000 $90,000 $450,000 **

* 

 Total $482,129 $101,157 $583,287 

*Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs

**HSIP Sec. 164 is 100% Federal 

*** Non-Federal Cash Match contributed by South Shores Clean Cities (aka Drive Clean Indiana), Partners for Clean Air, 

Private Bike-Map Sponsors.  

NIRPC staff has already submitted a draft of this document to INDOT, FHWA, and FTA for review and 

comment.  

NIRPC staff requests a Transportation Committee recommendation to the Full 

Commission/Executive Board to approve the FY 2025-2026 UPWP by adopting Resolution 24-05. 

Upon final approval by the Full Commission/Executive Board, the adopted UPWP will be submitted 

with the accompanying executed resolution to INDOT, FHWA, and FTA for their final approval, at 

which time NIRPC and INDOT may execute a grant agreement for the FY 2025 funds.  

14



Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission 

Unified Planning Work Program 

Fiscal Year 2025-2026  

Adopted ________ 

NIRPC Executive Board 

Plan NWI 

15



1 | P a g e N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 
16



2 | P a g e N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 

Table of Contents 

2025 UPWP BUDGETS ............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

2025 UPWP PL FUNDS (NOT INCLUDING FLEXED FUNDS) ...................................................................................................................... 5 
2025 UPWP FLEX FUNDS ............................................................................................................................................................... 6 
SALARY+BENEFITS TABLE.................................................................................................................................................................. 7 
EXPENSES AND CONTRACTED COSTS TABLE .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

ABOUT NIRPC ......................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

BACKGROUND + PURPOSE .............................................................................................................................................................. 10 

ABOUT THE UPWP ................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

2025 PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS (PEAS) ........................................................................................................................................ 13 
IIJA/BIL SECTION 11206 EXPENDITURE FOR COMPLETE STREETS .......................................................................................................... 15 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

METROPOLITAN PLANNING ACTIVITIES AND TASKS ............................................................................................................. 18 

100 | ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION .................................................................................................................... 18 
100.1 | PLANNING MANAGEMENT + ADMINISTRATION ...................................................................................................................... 18 
100.2 | PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND ENGAGEMENT ............................................................................................................................ 18 
100.3 | TITLE VI AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ............................................................................................ 19 
100.4 | AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................. 19 
100.5 | UPWP DEVELOPMENT + MANAGEMENT .............................................................................................................................. 19 
100.6 | PARTNER AND PEER AGENCY COORDINATION ......................................................................................................................... 20 
100.7 | PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ............................................................................................................................................ 20 
200 | DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
200.1 | PLANNING DATA COLLECTION ............................................................................................................................................. 21 
200.2 | PLANNING DATA ANALYSIS + GIS SUPPORT SERVICES .............................................................................................................. 21 
200.3 | PERFORMANCE-BASED PLANNING ACTIVITIES ......................................................................................................................... 22 
200.4| CONGESTION MANAGEMENT ............................................................................................................................................... 23 
200.5 | TRAVEL DEMAND MODELING .............................................................................................................................................. 23 
200.6 | AIR QUALITY CONFORMITY ................................................................................................................................................. 24 
300 | SHORT-RANGE PLANNING ............................................................................................................................................... 25 
300.1 | TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT .................................................................................................... 25 
300.2 | TIP MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................................................................... 26 
300.3 | ENVIRONMENTAL RED FLAG INVESTIGATIONS ......................................................................................................................... 26 
400 | LONG-RANGE PLANNING ................................................................................................................................................ 27 
400.1 | MTP MAINTENANCE......................................................................................................................................................... 27 
400.2 | NWI 2050/NWI 2050+ IMPLEMENTATION, FY 2025 & 2026 .............................................................................................. 27 
400.3 | REGIONAL LAND USE PLANNING .......................................................................................................................................... 29 
400.4 | SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ................................................................................................................................. 30 
400.5| ENVIRONMENTAL LINKAGES PLANNING .................................................................................................................................. 31 
400.6 | PLANNING FOR CLIMATE CHALLENGES .................................................................................................................................. 31 
400.7| FREIGHT PLANNING ........................................................................................................................................................... 32 
400.8| SAFETY PLANNING ............................................................................................................................................................. 33 
500 | MULTI-MODAL PLANNING ............................................................................................................................................... 34 
500.1 | ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ................................................................................................................................... 34 
500.2 | TRANSIT PLANNING ........................................................................................................................................................... 35 
600A | SPECIAL PLANNING ACTIVITIES ............................................................................................................................................. 37 
600A.1 | MARQUETTE GREENWAY ................................................................................................................................................. 37 
600A.2 | ROAD SAFETY AUDITS ..................................................................................................................................................... 38 
600A.3| LPA PLANNING ASSISTANCE/SPECIAL PLANS ........................................................................................................................ 38 
600B| CONGESTION MITIGATION AND AIR QUALITY ........................................................................................................................... 39 
600B.1| AIR QUALITY PUBLIC EDUCATION ....................................................................................................................................... 39 
700 | FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 5307 FUNDS ............................................................................................................... 41 
700.1 | SUB-GRANTEE OVERSIGHT .................................................................................................................................................. 41 

17



3 | P a g e N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 

900 | GENERAL MANAGEMENT ...................................................................................................................................................... 42 
900.1 | GENERAL MANAGEMENT OF NIRPC, OFFICE + STAFF ............................................................................................................... 42 

OTHER SIGNIFICANT REGIONAL PLANNING ACTIVITIES ........................................................................................................ 44 

GARY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CORPORATION .................................................................................................................................. 44 
NORTHERN INDIANA COMMUTER TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT ............................................................................................................... 44 

18



 4 | P a g e N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 

2025 UPWP Budgets 

2025-2026 UPWP Budgets 
State Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget Tables 

2025-2026 NIRPC UPWP Budget Summary 

UPWP 
Section 

Task Group Name 
Funding 
Source 

FY 24 Federal 
Funds 

(Carryover to 
FY 25) 

FY 24 Non-
Federal Funds 
(Carryover to 

FY 25)  

FY 24 Total 
Costs 

(Carryover to 
FY 25) 

FY 25 Federal 
Funds 

FY 25 Non-
Federal 
Funds  

FY 25 Total 
Costs  

FY 26 Federal 
Funds 

FY 26 Non-
Federal Funds  

FY 26 Total 
Costs  

100 
Administration & Public 
Participation 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$269,882.63  $67,470.66  $337,353.29  $426,809.93  $106,702.48  $533,512.41  $438,563.62  $109,640.91  $548,204.53  * 

200 Data Collection & Analysis 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$410,483.41  $102,620.85  $513,104.26  $227,661.23  $56,915.31  $284,576.54  $234,491.07  $58,622.77  $293,113.84  ** 

300 Short-Range Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$231,223.98  $57,806.00  $289,029.98  $234,914.46  $58,728.61  $293,643.07  $241,961.89  $60,490.47  $302,452.37  ** 

300 Short-Range Planning  STBG  $15,939.00  $3,984.75  $19,923.75  $44,629.20  $11,157.30  $55,786.50  $44,629.20  $11,157.30  $55,786.50  ** 

400 Long-Range Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$242,763.98  $60,691.00  $303,454.98  $465,869.52  $116,467.38  $582,336.90  $479,725.60  $119,931.40  $599,657.01  ** 

500 Multi-Modal Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$348,312.90  $87,078.23  $435,391.13  $200,527.13  $50,131.78  $250,658.91  $255,985.54  $63,996.38  $319,981.92  ** 

500 
Multi-Modal Planning (2.5% 
Complete Streets Set-Aside 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00  $0.00  $0.00  $48,002.53  $12,000.63  $60,003.16  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  ** 

600A Special Planning Activities 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$230,428.00  $57,607.00  $288,035.00  $316,316.21  $79,079.05  $395,395.27  $66,861.10  $16,715.27  $83,576.37  ** 

600A Special Planning Activities  HSIP  $77,500.00  $8,611.11  $86,111.11  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  *** 

600A Special Planning Activities  HSIP - Sec. 164 $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  $77,500.00  $0.00  $77,500.00  $77,500.00  $0.00  $77,500.00  **** 

600B Air Quality Public Education  CMAQ (INDOT)  $98,566.76  $24,641.69  $123,208.45  $360,000.00  $90,000.00  $450,000.00  $360,000.00  $90,000.00  $450,000.00  ***** 

Total TOTAL $1,925,100.66  $470,511.28  $2,395,611.94  $2,402,230.20  $581,182.55  $2,983,412.75  $2,199,718.03  $530,554.51  $2,730,272.54  

Federal Transit Administration 5307 Funds 

700.1 FTA Sub-Recipient Oversight  5307 (FTA)  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $245,677.60 $61,419.40 $307,097.00 $254,584.80 $63,646.20 $318,231.00 ** 

*PL/5303 Non-Salary direct expenses such as professional development, travel, copies, and printing for all task groups are budgeted under 100

**Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs 

***HSIP cost share is 90% Federal / 10% local 

****HSIP Sec. 164 is 100% Federal 

***** Non-Federal Cash Match contributed by South Shores Clean Cities (aka Drive Clean Indiana), Partners for Clean Air, Private Bike-Map Sponsors.  

19



5 | P a g e N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 

2025 UPWP PL Funds (not including flexed funds) 

2025 UPWP PL funds 
State Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Table 

FY 2025 PL Funding Only- NIRPC UPWP Budget Summary 

UPWP 
Section 

Task Group Name 
Funding 
Source 

Federal 
Share   (FY 

2025) 

Non-
Federal 

Share (FY 
2025) 

Total Costs  
(FY 2025) 

100 
Administration & Public 
Participation 

 P
L/

5
30

3
 (

IN
D

O
T)

 

$426,810 $106,702 $533,512 * 

200 Data Collection & Analysis $227,661 $56,915 $284,577 ** 

300 Short-Range Planning $234,914 $58,729 $293,643 ** 

400 Long-Range Planning $465,870 $116,467 $582,337 ** 

500 Multi-Modal Planning $200,527 $50,132 $250,659 ** 

500- Y410***
Multi-Modal Planning 2.5% 
Complete Streets Set Aside 

$48,003 $12,001 $60,003 *** 

600 Special Planning Activities $316,316 $79,079 $395,395 ** 

PL/5303 
Total 

TOTAL $1,920,101 $480,025 $2,400,126 

*PL/5303 Non-Salary direct expenses such as travel, copies and printing for all task groups are budgeted under
100

**Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs

*** Complete Street Planning Activities- Increasing Safe and Accessible Transportation Options

20



6 | P a g e N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 

2025 UPWP Flex Funds 

2025 UPWP Flex funds 
State Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Table 

FY 2025 Flex Funding Only- NIRPC UPWP Budget Summary 

UPWP Section Task Group Name 
Funding 
Source 

Federal Share  
(FY 2025) 

Non-Federal 
Share (FY 2025) 

Total Costs  
(FY 2025) 

300 Short-Range Planning  STBG $44,629 $11,157 $55,787 * 

600A Special Planning Activities 
 HSIP - Sec. 

164 
$77,500 $0 $77,500 ** 

600B 
Air Quality Public 
Education 

 CMAQ 
(INDOT) 

$360,000 $90,000 $450,000 *** 

 Total $482,129 $101,157 $583,287 

*Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs

**HSIP Sec. 164 is 100% Federal

*** Non-Federal Cash Match contributed by South Shores Clean Cities (aka Drive Clean Indiana), Partners for Clean Air, 
Private Bike-Map Sponsors.  

21



  

 

7 | P a g e              N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Salary+Benefits Table 

2025-2026 UPWP Salaries and Overhead     

State Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget Tables    

2025-2026 UPWP Salaries and Overhead 

UPWP 
Section 

Task Group Name 
Funding 
Source 

FY 24 Federal 
Funds 

(Carryover to 
FY 25) 

FY 24 Non-
Federal 
Funds 

(Carryover to 
FY 25)  

FY 24 Total 
Costs 

(Carryover to 
FY 25) 

FY 25 Federal 
Funds 

FY 25 Non-
Federal 
Funds  

FY 25 Total 
Costs  

FY 26 Federal 
Funds 

FY 26 Non-
Federal 
Funds  

FY 26 Total 
Costs          

  

100 Administration & Public Participation 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$269,882.63 $67,470.66 $337,353.29 $391,789.93 $97,947.48 $489,737.41 $403,543.62 $100,885.91 $504,429.53   

200 Data Collection & Analysis 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$410,483.41 $102,620.85 $513,104.26 $227,661.23 $56,915.31 $284,576.54 $234,491.07 $58,622.77 $293,113.84 ** 

300 Short-Range Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$231,223.98 $57,806.00 $289,029.98 $234,914.46 $58,728.61 $293,643.07 $241,961.89 $60,490.47 $302,452.37 ** 

300 Short-Range Planning  STBG  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

400 Long-Range Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$242,763.98 $60,691.00 $303,454.98 $461,869.52 $115,467.38 $577,336.90 $475,725.60 $118,931.40 $594,657.01 ** 

500 Multi-Modal Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$348,312.90 $87,078.23 $435,391.13 $213,955.62 $53,488.91 $267,444.53 $255,985.54 $63,996.38 $319,981.92 ** 

500 
Multi-Modal Planning (2.5% Complete 
Streets Set-Aside 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,574.03 $8,643.51 $43,217.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

600A Special Planning Activities 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$230,428.00 $57,607.00 $288,035.00 $64,913.69 $16,228.42 $81,142.11 $66,861.10 $16,715.27 $83,576.37 ** 

600A Special Planning Activities  HSIP  $7,749.90 $861.10 $8,611.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 *** 

600A Special Planning Activities  HSIP - Sec. 164 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 **** 

600B Air Quality Public Education  CMAQ (INDOT)  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ***** 

Total TOTAL 

  

$1,740,844.80 $434,134.83 $2,174,979.63 $1,629,678.47 $407,419.62 $2,037,098.09 $1,678,568.83 $419,642.21 $2,098,211.04   

Federal Transit Administration 5307 Funds 

700.1 FTA Sub-Recipient Oversight  5307 (FTA)  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $245,677.60 $61,419.40 $307,097.00 $254,584.80 $63,646.20 $318,231.00 ** 

**Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs 

***HSIP cost share is 90% Federal / 10% local            

****HSIP Sec. 164 is 100% Federal             

***** Non-Federal Cash Match contributed by South Shores Clean Cities (aka Drive Clean Indiana), Partners for Clean Air, Private Bike-Map Sponsors.  

 

  

22



  

 

8 | P a g e              N I R P C  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Expenses and Contracted Costs Table  

 

 

2025-2026 UPWP Expenses and Contracted Costs     

State Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget Tables    

2025-2026 UPWP Expenses and Contracted Costs 

UPWP 
Section 

Task Group Name and Activity 
Funding 
Source 

FY 24 Federal 
Funds 

(Carryover to 
FY 25) 

FY 24 Non-
Federal 
Funds 

(Carryover 
to FY 25)  

FY 24 Total 
Costs 

(Carryover to 
FY 25) 

FY 25 
Federal 
Funds 

FY 25 Non-
Federal 
Funds  

FY 25 Total 
Costs  

FY 26 
Federal 
Funds 

FY 26 Non-
Federal 
Funds  

FY 26 Total 
Costs          

  

100 
Administration & Public Participation: 
Professional Development, Printing, 
Travel 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,020.00 $8,755.00 $43,775.00 $35,020.00 $8,755.00 $43,775.00   

200 Data Collection & Analysis 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

300 Short-Range Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

300 
Short-Range Planning: R-TIP Software 
License 

 STBG  $15,939.00 $3,984.75 $19,923.75 $44,629.20 $11,157.30 $55,786.50 $44,629.20 $11,157.30 $55,786.50 ** 

400 
Long-Range Planning: Sensible Tools 
Workshop consultant costs 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 ** 

400 Long-Range Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00   $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

500 Multi-Modal Planning 
 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

500 
Multi-Modal Planning (2.5% Complete 
Streets Set-Aside 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

600A 
Special Planning Activities: LPA Planning 
Assistance/Special Plans consultant 
contracts 

 PL/5303 
(INDOT)  

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $251,402.53 $62,850.63 $314,253.16 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ** 

600A 
Special Planning Activities: Road Safety 
Audits 

 HSIP  $69,750.00 $7,750.00 $77,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 *** 

600A 
Special Planning Activities: Road Safety 
Audits 

 HSIP - Sec. 164 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $77,500.00 $0.00 $77,500.00 $77,500.00 $0.00 $77,500.00 **** 

600B Air Quality Public Education  CMAQ (INDOT)  $98,566.76 $24,641.69 $123,208.45 $360,000.00 $90,000.00 $450,000.00 $360,000.00 $90,000.00 $450,000.00 ***** 

Total TOTAL 

  

$184,255.76 $36,376.44 $220,632.20 $772,551.73 $173,762.93 $946,314.66 $521,149.20 $110,912.30 $632,061.50   

Federal Transit Administration 5307 Funds 

700.1 FTA Sub-Recipient Oversight  5307 (FTA)  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $245,677.60 $61,419.40 $307,097.00 $254,584.80 $63,646.20 $318,231.00 ** 

*PL/5303 Non-Salary direct expenses such as professional development, travel, copies, and printing for all task groups are budgeted under 100 

**Non-Federal Cash Match to be funded by NIRPC and participating LPAs 

***HSIP cost share is 90% Federal / 10% local            

****HSIP Sec. 164 is 100% Federal             

***** Non-Federal Cash Match contributed by South Shores Clean Cities (aka Drive Clean Indiana), Partners for Clean Air, Private Bike-Map Sponsors.  

23



 

 

9 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

About NIRPC 

The Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission (NIRPC) is a regional council of local 

governments serving the citizens of Lake, Porter, and LaPorte counties in Northwest Indiana. The 

Northwest Indiana (NWI) region is part of the U.S. Census Bureau's Chicago Metropolitan 

Statistical Area (MSA). NIRPC provides a forum that enables the citizens of NWI to address 

regional issues relating to transportation, the environment, and economic development. NIRPC, 

as a recipient of federal funds, is subject to the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, as amended, and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Title VI prohibits 

discrimination based on race, creed, and national origin. The ADA prohibits discrimination based 

on disability. 

 

NIRPC is a multi-purpose, sub-state, area-wide planning agency. NIRPC was originally established 

as the Lake-Porter County Regional Transportation and Planning Commission in 1965, pursuant 

to State-enabling legislation. An amendment to this legislation in 1973 provided NIRPC with its 

current name and allowed for adding new member counties. Under this provision, LaPorte County 

joined NIRPC in 1979. 

 

In 1996 the legislation was again amended to provide a seat on the Commission for all of the 

mayors in the three-county region. The legislation was further amended in 2003 to represent 

all 41 cities and towns in the tri-county area and specify that representatives must be elected 

officials. The legislation under which the Commission operates is contained within  Indiana 

Code Title 36, Article 7, Chapter 7.6. 

 

NIRPC operates as a cooperative of local governments within the tri-county area. It is composed 

of fifty-three members. In addition to the municipal appointments, the County Councils, County 

Boards of Commissioners, and County Surveyors appoint one member each, as does the 

Governor and two heavily populated townships. The Full Commission meets quarterly, and the 

Executive Board meets in the interim months. NIRPC's meetings are open to the public and 

livestreamed, and every agenda includes a time for public comment. 

 

One of the most important designations NIRPC holds is that of the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO) for Northwest Indiana. MPOs are responsible, together with state 

departments of transportation and public transit operators, for carrying out the 

Continuing, Cooperative, and Comprehensive (3-C) transportation planning process for 

urbanized areas exceeding 50,000 population.  

 

Lake, Porter, and LaPorte Counties in the northwestern corner of the State of Indiana 

comprise NIRPC’s Metropolitan Planning Area. This MPA is located at the southern tip of 

Lake Michigan and is an integral part of the greater Chicago metropolitan area. It includes 

784,332 people (2020 Census) and covers 1,520 square miles. There are forty-one cities 

and towns in the MPA. 

 

In December 2022 the Census Bureau released a final list of Census-designated urban 

areas, which includes a new designated urbanized area for the NIRPC Region Valparaiso-

Shorewood Forest, IN. The Valparaiso-Shorewood Forest urban area has a population of 

51,867, 22,154 housing units, and 33.6 Sq-mile of land area. The following map shows 

the three designated urban areas of Lake-Porter, Michigan City-LaPorte, and Valparaiso-

Shorewood Forest.  

24

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2020/ic/titles/036/#36-7-7.6
http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2020/ic/titles/036/#36-7-7.6


 

 

10 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

 
1 NIRPC Adjusted Urban Area Boundaries 

 

Northwest Indiana is a diverse and dynamic region whose complexities are reflected in the 

regional transportation system. The MPA includes arguably some of the most strategic and 

critical links in the national transportation system. These factors combine to make the role of 

MPO for Northwest Indiana extraordinarily challenging. 

Background + Purpose 

NIRPC, as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for Northwest Indiana, is responsible 

for conducting the federally required “3-C” transportation planning process for Lake, LaPorte, 

and Porter Counties. This Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is a core planning document 

required by the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT). The UPWP is the approved 

work plan for the MPO staff, identifying planning tasks and activities to be conducted over   the 

next two years. 

 
This UPWP is also a financial planning document linking resources and staff where they will be 

the most effective in responding to significant local and regional issues and resolving area-wide 

problems. This includes describing other planning, administrative, and program offerings of 

NIRPC as  a council of governments. It also includes all environmental and economic development 

25



 

 

11 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

planning and transit administration, which includes sub-grantee oversight to transit providers in 

our region, grant administration, and procurement. 

 
The UPWP continues to balance within the available resources, long and short-range planning 

and programming; special studies; data gathering, analysis, and dissemination; travel demand 

modeling; public involvement; and program administration. The UPWP attempts to address the 

major surface transportation issues facing our region and supports the necessary work required 

of an MPO in a Transportation Management Area. The UPWP is designed to maintain a certified 

continuous comprehensive, cooperative (“3-C”) transportation planning process in the context of 

connected planning processes for land use, social justice, economic development, and the 

environment. 

26



 

 

12 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

About the UPWP 

Required Elements 

A driving influence in the development of this UPWP is the authorizing legislation for surface 

transportation. The most recent legislation is called interchangeably the Infrastructure 

Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) or the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL). This legislation has 

continued the programs in the previous legislation called The Fixing America's Surface 

Transportation Act (FAST). 

 
NIRPC accomplishes transportation planning activities in an open, transparent, and inclusive 

process that complies with federal metropolitan planning regulations to maintain this region’s 

federal planning certification. According to the planning rule, NIRPC develops the three major 

required products of a metropolitan area transportation planning process: a UPWP (this 

document), a metropolitan transportation plan (MTP) with at least a 20-year horizon, and a short-

range Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The UPWP is organized by major activity and 

task and describes who will perform the work, the schedule for completing the work, the resulting 

products, the proposed funding, and a summary of the total amounts and sources of federal and 

matching funds. INDOT, FHWA, and FTA review the UPWP and other products of the planning 

process for compliance. 

 

Required elements such as Title VI and Environmental Justice Planning can be found in 

section        100.3. 

 

FHWA + FTA Planning Emphasis Areas 

The Indiana Division Office of Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transit 

Administration Region V (FTA) issue planning emphasis areas (PEAs) annually for incorporation 

into the MPO’s Unified Planning Work Programs. For FY 2025 these are:  

 

• Institutionalizing Equity, Accessibility, and Safety 

• Maximizing Coordination  

• Urbanized Area and Metropolitan Planning Area Boundaries 

 

NIRPC also focuses on National Planning Emphasis Areas (PEAs) put forth periodically by USDOT. 

The PEAs help with the implementation of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA). The 

table below includes the PEAs, hyperlinked to the corresponding section where the PEA has been 

included in NIRPC’s planning work. A PEA may be addressed in other UPWP sections, but the 

following sections will indicate the primary focus areas for meeting the requirements of the PEA. 

UPWP page numbers are also provided. 

 

• Tackling the Climate Crisis- Transition to a Clean Energy Resilient Future 

• Equity and Justice40 in Transportation Planning 

• Complete Streets 

• Public Involvement 

• Strategic Highway Network (STRAHNET)/US Department of Defense Coordination 

• Federal Land Management Agency (FLMA) Coordination 

• Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) 

• Data in Transportation Planning 

27



 

 

13 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

2025 Planning Emphasis Areas (PEAs) 

Planning Emphasis Area NIRPC Planning Element 
 

Tackling the Climate Crisis -Transition to 

a Clean Energy Resilient 

 

400.2  NWI 2050/ NWI 2050+ Implementation, FY 

2025 & 2026 

400.5   Environmental Linkages Planning 

400.6   Planning for Climate Change 

600B|  Congestion Mitigation And Air Quality (CMAQ) 

Equity and Justice40 in Transportation 

Planning 

 

100.3   Title VI & Environmental Justice         

100.4   ADA Program Management               

300.1   TIP Development                                

400.2  NWI 2050/ NWI 2050+ Implementation, FY 

2025 & 2026 

400.8 Safety Planning500.1 Active Transportation 

Planning 

500.2   Transit Planning    

600A.1 Marquette Greenway 

600A.2 Road Safety Audits                           

Complete Streets 

 

300.1   TIP Development                                 

400.2  NWI 2050/ NWI 2050+ Implementation, FY 

2025 & 2026 

500      Multimodal Planning                          

 

600A.2 Road Safety Audits                           

Public Involvement 

 

100.2   Public Participation 

100.3   Title VI & Environmental Justice         

300.1   TIP Development                              

 

Strategic Highway Network (STRAHNET)/US 

Department of Defense Coordination 

 

300.1   TIP Development                              

400.4   Surface Transportation Planning 

400.7 Freight Planning 

Federal Land Management Agency 

Coordination 

300.3   Environmental Red Flag Investigation 

400.5   Environmental Linkages Planning 

500.1 Active Transportation Planning 

Planning and Environmental Linkages 

(PEL) 

300.3   Environmental Red Flag investigations 

400.5   Environmental Linkages Planning 

Data in Transportation Planning 200.1   Planning Data Collection 

Institutionalizing Equity, Accessibility, 

and Safety 

100.2 Public Participation and Engagement 

100.3 Title VI and Environmental Justice Program 

Management 

300.1   TIP Development                              

400.2  NWI 2050/ NWI 2050+ Implementation, FY 

2025 & 2026 

400.8 Safety Planning 

500.2 Transit Planning 

28



 

 

14 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Maximizing Coordination 100.6 Partner and Peer Agency Coordination 

300.1   TIP Development                              

300.2 TIP Development + Management 

300.3 Environmental Red Flag Investigations 

400.5 Environmental Linkages Planning 

Urbanized Area and Metropolitan 

Planning Area Boundaries 

200.2 Planning Data Analysis + GIS Support Services 

 

29



 

 

15 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

IIJA/BIL Section 11206 Expenditure for Complete Streets 

IIJA/BIL § 11206(b)(2) requires MPOs to expend not less than 2.5 percent of PL funds on Complete 

Streets activities. IIJA/BIL § 11206(a) defines Complete Streets standards or policies as “…standards or 

policies that ensure the safe and adequate accommodation of all users of the transportation system, 

including pedestrians, bicyclists, public transportation users, children, older individuals, individuals with 

disabilities, motorists, and freight vehicles.” 

Per the same statute, Complete Streets planning includes, but is not limited to, the following activities:  

(1) Adoption of Complete Streets standards or policies; 

(2) Development of a Complete Streets prioritization plan that identifies a specific list of Complete 

Streets projects to improve the safety, mobility, or accessibility of a street; 

(3) Development of transportation plans  

(A) To create a network of active transportation facilities, including sidewalks, bikeways, or 

pedestrian and bicycle trails, to connect neighborhoods with destinations such as workplaces, 

schools, residences, businesses, recreation areas, healthcare and childcare services, or other 

community activity centers; 

(B) To integrate active transportation facilities with public transportation service or improve access 

to public transportation; 

(C) To create multiuse active transportation infrastructure facilities (including bikeways or 

pedestrian and bicycle trails) that make connections within or between communities; 

(D) To increase public transportation ridership; and 

(E) To improve the safety of bicyclists and pedestrians. 

(4) Regional and megaregional planning (i.e., multi-jurisdictional transportation planning that extends 

beyond MPO and/or State boundaries) that address travel demand and capacity constraints 

through alternatives to new highway capacity, including through intercity passenger rail; and 

(5) Development of transportation plans and policies that support transit-oriented development. 

 

In FY 2025, NIRPC is required to expend no less than $48,003 in PL funding for Complete Streets 

planning. To meet this requirement, Task 500.1 Active Transportation Planning includes the maintenance 

and implementation of the region’s active transportation priority corridor plan, development of an 

Elevated trail feasibility study and Trail Oriented Development. A portion of these deliverables will be 

funded through the minimum 2.5% set aside for Complete Street planning.  

 

Total FY25 

PL/5303 

Minimum 2.5% Expenditure for 

Complete Streets 

NIRPC FY25 Expenditures for 

Complete Streets in Task 500.1 

$1,920,101 $48,003  $48,003  

   

  

30



 

 

16 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Active participation methods 

Inform 

Public Participation 

NIRPC’s planning activities are guided by its 2019 Public Participation Plan (PPP) Engage NWI, the 

federally required PPP that enables NIRPC staff to ensure that it meets all federal requirements for 

public participation. However, more importantly, Engage NWI is a guide that enables the public to 

engage with regional planning. Engage NWI promotes a meaningful   exchange of ideas, identification 

of regional issues and solutions, and advancing of initiatives to achieve the vision for Northwest 

Indiana. In addition to detailing the technical aspects of public participation, it details the type of 

engagement expected when working with the public. The following chart defines every planning 

activity's corresponding engagement goal means every planning activity has a corresponding 

engagement goal defined by the following chart. This document uses the terms “Inform,” “Consult,” 

“Involve,” and “Collaborate” to define how NIRPC staff and the public interact to complete NIRPC’s 

ongoing planning work. NIRPC is committed to ensuring that 50% or more of all planning tasks fall 

into the “Involve” or “Collaborate” categories of participation. 
 

Adapted from the International Association of Public Participation (IAP2) Public Participation Spectrum 

  
 Consult Involve  Collaborate                                                

Provide the public 
with objective 
information and 
assist their 
understanding 
of regional 
challenges, options, 
opportunities, or 
solutions. 

Keep the general 
public and 
stakeholders 
informed. 

 
 
 
 
 

Website, social 
media, newsletters, 
multi-language 
publications, press 
releases, mailings, 
live streaming, white 
papers, or fact 
sheets. 

The “Inform” level of 
participation will be 
used for technical 
documents, but the 
methods will be 
used frequently to 
communicate 
regularly with the 
public 

Obtain feedback 
on regional 
planning tasks, 
analyses, or prior 
to policy making. 

 
 
 

Keep the public 
informed. Listen 
and acknowledge 
concerns and ideas 
and provide the 
public with a report 
on how input 
shaped outcomes. 

 

Activities listed in 
“Inform” plus 
surveys, comment 
forms, webinars, 
or formal meetings 

 
 

The “Consult” level 
of participation 
will be used less 
frequently, but the 
methods will be 
used when 
needed. 

Work directly with the 
public and 
stakeholders 
throughout the 
planning process to 
ensure concerns and 
ideas are consistently 
understood and 
considered. 

Work with the public 
and stakeholders to 
ensure goals and 
ideas are directly 
reflected in planning 
work as much as 
possible and report 
on how input shapes 
outcomes. 

Activities listed in 
“Consult” plus focus 
groups targeted 
outreach to meet 
people where they 
are, such as “Out and  
About” or “Pop-up 
Events.” 

The “Involve” method 
will be used 
frequently, and the 
methods as well. 

Partner with the public 
and stakeholders in 
every aspect of the 
planning process, 
from project scoping 
through the adoption 
of plans or policies. 

 

Work with the public 
and stakeholders to 
inform planning work 
from the start at 
project scoping to 
understand issues, 
generate solutions, 
and incorporate 
feedback to shape 
outcomes. 

Activities listed in 
“Involve” plus task 
forces, charrettes, 
keypad polling, and 
working groups 

 
 

The “Collaborate” 
method will be used 
frequently with major 
planning processes. 

Engage NWI goal: 

Does the task 
require? 

When goal will be 
selected: 

Involvement 
methods / tools 
may include: 

Engage NWI 
promise 

31

https://nirpc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/FINAL-Engage-NWI-Commission-Adopted.pdf


 

 

17 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

 

 

Blank page 

  

32



 

 

18 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Metropolitan Planning Activities and Tasks 

 
100 | Administration and Public Participation 

Salaries and Overhead* 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$269,882.63 $391,789.93 $403,543.62 $1,065,216.18 

Non-Federal $67,470.66 $97,947.48 $100,885.91 $266,304.04 

Total $337,353.29 $489,737.41 $504,429.53 $1,331,520.22 

FY 2024 Non-Salary direct expenses such as professional development, travel, copies, and printing for all 
task groups are budgeted under 100 

          

Professional Development, Printing, Travel 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$0.00 $35,020.00 $35,020.00 $70,040.00 

Non-Federal $0.00 $8,755.00 $8,755.00 $17,510.00 

Total $0.00 $43,775.00 $43,775.00 $87,550.00 

 

100.1 | Planning Management + Administration 

Description: Overall management of NIRPC’s planning program including management of staff and 

administration of resources to fulfill MPO functions. This includes:  

• Direction and oversight of staff work including internal staff meetings, performance reviews, timesheet 

management and approvals, and QA/QC of work products.  

• Administration of topical planning committees: the production and distribution of agendas, minutes, 

and meeting materials and the communication functions of Administrative Assistants.  

• Compliance oversight of sub-grantees, consultants, and LPAs receiving clean vehicle grants from the 

state.  

• Includes budget for printing.  

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: NIRPC Staff 

 

Deliverables: Agendas, minutes, and supporting materials for 9 Board meetings, 9 Technical Planning 

Committee meetings, and 20 topical committee meetings. Internal personnel-related documents.   

 

 

100.2 | Public Participation and Engagement 

Description: Implementation of NIRPC’s Public Participation Plan, Engage NWI, which includes the public 

participation requirements for MPOs found in the federal metropolitan planning regulations. This task 

includes drafting and posting official public notices, maintaining the NIRPC website and social media 

accounts, communicating with the public via the NIRPC website and social media accounts, maintaining 

up-to-date contact lists and accessible meeting locations, providing alternative formats when requested. 

This task also includes staff participation in relevant regional events to educate and engage stakeholders.  

33



 

 

19 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

 

Timeline: Ongoing  

 

Contributors: Tom Vander Woude, Mitch Barloga, Grace Benninger, Kathy Luther, Kevin Polette, Meredith 

Stilwell, Stephen Hughes 

 

Deliverables: Updates to Engage NWI, as needed, consistent with 2025 PEA of Institutionalizing Equity, 

Accessibility, and Safety; public notices; social media posts; NIRPC website content.up to date contact lists; 

marketing and promotional materials for distribution and use at public meetings. 

 

 

100.3 | Title VI and Environmental Justice Program Management 

Description: Activities to ensure that NIRPC and partner Local Public Agencies (LPA) in our region 

comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Presidential Executive Order 12898 and the 

Americans with Disabilities Act. Staff will coordinate work products internally across tasks to ensure 

that programs and projects adhere to the principles of non-discrimination and ensure the MPO’s 

nondiscrimination self-certifications remain accurate. Additionally, this planning task will also include 

the evaluation of NIRPC plans and programs for environmental justice (EJ) sensitivity and work to 

continuously expand outreach efforts to low-income, minority, and other potentially disadvantaged 

populations. As needed, staff will offer technical assistance to those LPAs that need assistance in 

completing this requirement for the development and implementation of a Title VI Plan. Staff will 

foster communications, cooperation, and coordination of Title VI and EJ populations to regional 

decision-making. 

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Tom Vander Woude, Mitch Barloga, Grace Benninger,Charles Bradsky, Eman Ibrahim, 

Kevin Polette, Scott Weber, Stephen Hughes 

 

Task Deliverables: Technical assistance as needed, robust public outreach, coordination of NIRPC 

projects in relation to Title VI and EJ community needs and outreach, increased inclusion of EJ 

communities in the transportation planning process in Northwest Indiana. 

 

 

100.4 | Americans with Disabilities Act Program Management 

Description: As needed assistance to LPAs to achieve compliance with ADA transition planning 

requirements activities. This could include review of ADA transition plans, distribution of resources 

from INDOT/USDOT, or training. 

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Kevin Polette, Ann Weitgenant 

 

Task Deliverables: Technical assistance as needed.  

 

 

100.5 | UPWP Development + Management 

Description: Development and management of the UPWP and amendments and completion of all quarterly 

and annual reporting. The UPWP includes planning activities to implement NWI 2050+, as well as 

applicable laws and regulations to support the federally required 3C transportation process for MPOs as 

outlined in metropolitan planning regulations.  

34



 

 

20 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Tom Vander Woude, Talaya Jones, Eman Ibrahim 

 

Deliverables: Final FY2026 UPWP Amendment approved by federal partners before the start of FY 2026, 

UPWP Amendments as necessary, FY 25 and FY 26 annual completion reports, Quarterly Reports, FY 

2027-2028 UPWP. 

 

 

100.6 | Partner and Peer Agency Coordination 

Description: Coordinated implementation of MPO functions with the public, partners, stakeholders, and 

state, federal, regional, and local agencies. Task includes:  

• Participation in meetings with partners on transportation topics and subjects with linkages to NWI’s 

transportation network throughout the year. Examples include the MPO Council in Indianapolis, Indiana 

Department of Transportation (INDOT), Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP), Northeastern 

Illinois Regional Transportation Authority (RTA), Ports of Indiana, etc.   

• Negotiation of FTA Funding split between NWI and Northeastern Illinois. 

• Task budget includes funds budgeted for staff travel to external meetings.  

  

Timeline: Ongoing 

Contributors: NIRPC staff 

Deliverables: Various meeting materials.  

 

100.7 | Professional Development 

Description: Registration and travel expenses for staff participation in professional development activities 

including state and national conferences, online workshops and webinars. Staff will attend the annual 

Indiana MPO Conference, Purdue Road School, American Planning Association state and national 

conferences, and other training opportunities on subjects related to the activities in the UPWP. Task budget 

includes funds for organizational dues. 

Timeline: Ongoing 

Contributors: NIRPC staff 

Deliverables: Professional development through attendance at relevant events.  

  

35



 

 

21 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

200 | Data Collection and Analysis  

200 

 

Salaries and Overhead 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$410,483.41 $227,661.23 $234,491.07 $872,635.71 

Non-Federal $102,620.85 $56,915.31 $58,622.77 $218,158.93 

Total $513,104.26 $284,576.54 $293,113.84 $1,090,794.64 

 

200.1 | Planning Data Collection  

Description: Collect, update, and manage data relating to all aspects of metropolitan planning and 

decision-making. Includes data to support congestion management, economic and land use development, 

safety planning, vehicle, bicycle, and pedestrian counts, micro-mobility, transit data, and Highway 

Performance Monitoring System (HPMS) data. Task includes:  

• Downloading data from public sources. 

• Coordinating with partners including INDOT, LPAs, transit providers, etc. to obtain data.  

• Field collection of traffic counts and bicycle counts.  

• Formatting and organizing data sets. 

• Publication of data on a web-based platform. 

• Provision of data to NIRPC members and external partners.  

Specific data sets include:  

• Census data 

• ARIES crash data 

• Land use and environmental data 

• Traffic counts 

• Travel time data 

• Transit data 

• Asset inventory and condition  

• Bicycle and pedestrian counts 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Kevin Polette, Grace Benninger 

 

Deliverables: Formatted data sets for NIRPC work products, data sets provided to NIRPC members and 

external partners. 

 

 

200.2 | Planning Data Analysis + GIS Support Services 

Description: Develop, manage, and deploy GIS data and analysis to support NIRPC’s UPWP 

activities. Specific tasks include:  

• Develop a performance measures and data dashboard. 

• Downloading data from public sources including ACS. 

• Using US Census data, calculate regional numbers and compile new data for the regional 

snapshot data sheets. Include housing metrics in regional snapshots. 

• Coordinating with partners including INDOT, LPAs, transit providers, etc. to obtain data. 

36



 

 

22 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

• Analyze transportation, land use, demographic, environmental, economic, and other data as 

needed to support the transportation planning and programming process in NWI, which may 

include:  

o Identify investment opportunity areas within the NWI region. 

o Track infill development in the last 10 years within the NWI region and, more specifically, 

within older communities. 

o Develop maps to assess access to parks and open space in EJ areas. 

o Map and analyze population, housing, and jobs data in walkable centers and transit 

areas.  

o Update and keep a record of the boundaries and projects occurring in NIRPC's TOD areas 

and the Transit Development Districts (TDD) of the regional South Shore Corridor TOD 

areas.  

o Create a map of urban service boundaries.  

o Include high solar and wind energy potential areas as natural resources in GIS layers in 

NWI. 

o Continue to maintain and update the “Regional Priority Trails & Corridors Map” as 

identified in the Greenways + Blueways 2020 Plan. 

o Inventory and digitize in GIS sidewalk and bicycle lanes noting gaps in infrastructure, and 

pedestrian and bicyclist comfort. 

o Create a parcel-based map of current and potential business locations along major NWI 

corridors to help identify economic centers and prioritize future transportation 

improvements.  

• Manage the storage of GIS data online and within NIRPC’s network. 

• Manage software licenses. 

• Prepare maps and other GIS products to support NIRPC planning activities, partner 

initiatives, etc.   

• Publish online maps and data sets. 

• Expand and improve upon data availability through web-based platforms including GIS online 

and dashboards. 

• Participate in regional and state GIS user groups and organizations and develop Northwest 

Indiana-specific goals. 

• Respond to data requests.  

 

Timeline: Most tasks are ongoing; Performance Measures Dashboard – Scheduled Completion 

6/30/2025; Online Data Hub – 6/30/2026; updated regional snapshot data sheets – 12/31/2024. 

 

Contributors: Grace Benninger 

 

Deliverables: Performance measures dashboard, online data hub, regional snapshot data sheets, maps 

and data sets.  

 

 

200.3 | Performance-based Planning Activities 

Description: Implementation of the performance-based planning framework from NWI 2050 and NWI 

2050+ in compliance with USDOT Performance Based Planning and Programming requirements. Specific 

tasks include:  

• Monitoring of the measures and target setting to comply with USDOT requirements. 

• Monitoring and analysis of regional data metrics. 

• Share performance measure data and target progress on website and in technical presentations to 

NIRPC committees. 

37



 

 

23 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

• Present resolutions with updated performance measure targets to Technical Planning Committee and 

the NIRPC Executive Board/Full Commission. 

• Publish data and progress on achieving performance measure targets on NIRPC’s website. 

Timeline: Ongoing; performance measure targets set annually.  

 

Contributors: Scott Weber 

 

Deliverables: Presentations to NIRPC Board and committees, adoption resolutions, website content.  

 

 

200.4| Congestion Management 

Description: Fulfill the requirements for a Transportation Management Area (TMA) by ensuring that 

planning and programming activities carried out by NIRPC and its local partners consider congestion 

reduction where possible. Continue to pursue an operation-oriented approach to the congestion 

management process. 

This task includes: 

• Performing objective and quantitative evaluation of congestion within the NIRPC region. 

• Monitoring congestion-related data and including congestion-related performance measures on the 

Annual Performance Dashboard. 

• Administering and updating, as necessary, MOVE NWI (the Congestion Management Process for NWI).  

• Evaluating new TIP project applications and periodic NWI 2050+/TIP Amendment projects with CMP 

MOVE NWI. 

• Ongoing maintenance to MOVE NWI, including populating it with the latest available data 

Timeline: Ongoing; populating MOVE NWI with the latest available data will be completed by March 31 each 

year for the previous year. 

 

Contributors: Scott Weber 

 

Deliverables: TIP application and periodic NWI 2050+/TIP Amendment project reviews, annual updates to 

MOVE NWI. 

 

 

200.5 | Travel Demand Modeling 

Description: Maintain regional Travel Demand Model, which was updated in 2024 with a 2019 Base Year, 

2050 Horizon Year, and interim years every 5 years.  The computationally rigorous travel demand model 

allows NIRPC to support planning and programming activities by identifying the need for and impact of 

plans and projects. The results of modeling help meet federal requirements of air quality conformity and 

assist NIRPC stakeholders in evaluating some localized travel impacts of projects. This task includes:  

• Validation of NIRPC Travel Demand Model using HPMS VMT data. 

• Responding to modeling requests from INDOT, Local Public Agencies, and other planning partners. 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Scott Weber 

 

Deliverables: Validation reports of NIRPC Travel Demand Model; emailed responses to INDOT, Local Public 

Agencies, and other planning partners on modeling requests; report of how many and which modeling 

requests have been answered on the NIRPC website; preparation of new modeling years and scenarios for 

new TIP, TIP Amendments, and NWI 2050+ Amendments. 

38



 

 

24 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

 

200.6 | Air Quality Conformity 

Description:  Meet the federal requirements for Air Quality Conformity as they apply to MPO planning and 

programming for an air quality non-attainment or maintenance area. The task will show that NIRPC fulfills 

these requirements by only planning and programming projects within motor vehicle emissions budgets 

and other required parameters. This task includes:  

• Ongoing discussion with ICG members about NWI 2050+/TIP amendments that may require official 

conformity actions.  

• Preparation of Air Quality Conformity analysis reports for actions the ICG finds necessary. 

• Ongoing monitoring of the latest EPA designations for non-attainment or maintenance status. 

• Ongoing monitoring of the latest USDOT requirements for conformity and training/resources that are 

offered. 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Scott Weber, Kathy Luther 

 

Deliverables: Periodic publication of Air Quality Conformity Determination Analysis; report documents on 

the NIRPC website. 
 

39



 

 

25 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

300 | Short-Range Planning 

 

Salaries and Overhead 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$231,223.98 $234,914.46 $241,961.89 $708,100.33 

Non-
Federal 

$57,806.00 $58,728.61 $60,490.47 $177,025.08 

Total $289,029.98 $293,643.07 $302,452.37 $885,125.42 
     

Contractual - RTIP Software 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

STBG 
Flex 

$15,939.00 $44,629.20 $44,629.20 $105,197.40 

Non-
Federal 

$3,984.75 $11,157.30 $11,157.30 $26,299.35 

Total $19,923.75 $55,786.50 $55,786.50 $131,496.75 

 

 

300.1 | Transportation Improvement Program Development 

Description: Produce the 2026-2030 TIP document Invest NWI with a program that is fully funded and 

constrained. Coordinate with state and federal partners to ensure approval of NIRPC’s TIP. This includes:  

• Solicit feedback from NIRPC topical committees on the 2024 NOFA. 

• Update project selection criteria for 2026-2030 TIP NOFA to ensure the following:  

o Consistency with TAM Plan. 

o Priority of projects in identified Transit Oriented Development. 

o Priority of projects in Environmental Justice areas as identified by the US Census.  

o Consistency with Safe Streets & Roads for All and Vision Zero.  

o Priority of projects that have the greatest impact on those roadway users that are the most 

vulnerable.  

• Distribute NOFA; review project applications internally and with topical committees. 

• Provide technical assistance to transit operators and LPAs 

• Develop 2026-2030 TIP documents and present to NIRPC committees and Board for approval.  

• Maintain online/digital TIP (RTIP), adding projects from the NOFA after approval. 

• Maintain a good working relationship with LPAs, transit operators, INDOT, FHWA, and FTA. (PEA- 

Maximizing Coordination) 

• Coordination with INDOT to program projects.  

Timeline: Ongoing 

Contributors: Charles Bradsky, Stephen Hughes, Ann Weitgenant 

Deliverables: NOFA-related documents, 2026-2030 TIP documents, adoption resolutions and presentation 

materials; updates to the online/digital TIP (RTIP). 

 

40



 

 

26 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

300.2 | TIP Management  

Description: Staff will coordinate with LPAs, transit operators, state and federal agencies and complete 

periodic amendments and modifications to the TIP in order to maintain a fiscally constrained five-year 

multi-modal investment program reflecting the vision and goals of NWI 2050+, implement the 

performance-based planning framework, adhere to air quality conformity rules, and utilize a robust and 

transparent public participation process. Staff will complete all required reports. This task includes:  

• Organize and conduct Local Quarterly Tracking meetings. 

• Process TIP amendments and administrative modifications as needed.  

• Maintain a current Employee in Responsible Charge (ERC) list for each LPA. 

• Publish a list of federal funding obligations, known as the Annual List of Obligated Projects. (ALOP), 

within the timeline from US DOT and INDOT.  

• Maintain e-TIP contract for development/improvements to R-TIP. 

• Document the number and percentage of projects let for construction per program year as originally 

published in the TIP. 

Timeline: Ongoing  

 

Contributors: Charles Bradsky, Stephen Hughes, Ann Weitgenant 

 

Deliverables: TIP amendments and administrative modifications, Local Quarterly Tracking meeting 

materials and reports, adoption resolutions and presentation materials, annual letting report,  Annual List 

of Obligated Projects (ALOP). 

 

 

300.3 | Environmental Red Flag Investigations 

Description: Early coordination with LPAs for local projects. NIRPC will send letters to LPAs informing them 

that a Red Flag Investigation will be needed following NOFA. The trigger will be a DES number assigned to a 

project. NIRPC will continue to review and complete Red Flag Investigations, as needed, in response to 

early coordination letters.  

 

NIRPC will work with LPAs to encourage early investigation of environmental and natural resource 

considerations associated with projects in the TIP during the planning and scoping phases to minimize 

impacts and maximize the environmental benefits for mitigation efforts.  NIRPC staff will work with Indiana 

Dunes National Park to identify a process for consultation regarding TIP-selected projects.  

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Kathy Luther, Charles Bradsky, Jennifer Birchfield, Candice Eklund 

 

Deliverables: Preliminary RFI review with LPAs as part of project scoping before NOFA submission, project 

tracking spreadsheet, early coordination letter reviews, Red Flag Investigations and comments as needed, 

RFI data posted on ArcGIS online, Natural Resource Planner completion of INDOT NEPA/CE Initial Course 

Training when offered. 

41



 

 

27 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

400 | Long-Range Planning 

 

Salaries and Overhead 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$242,763.98 $461,869.52 $475,725.60 $1,180,359.10 

Non-Federal $60,691.00 $115,467.38 $118,931.40 $295,089.78 

Total $303,454.98 $577,336.90 $594,657.01 $1,475,448.88 
     

Contractual - Sensible Tools Handbook Workshops 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 

Non-Federal $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

Total $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 

 

 

400.1 | MTP Maintenance 

Description: Work with local governments, regional stakeholders, and state and federal agencies to 

maintain and implement NWI 2050+, the region’s Metropolitan Transportation Plan. This includes:  

 

• Meet with local governments and regional stakeholders to explain and promote NWI 2050+ 

and receive feedback.  

• Participate in regional partnerships and serve on committees to advocate for NWI 2050+ 

goals and objectives. 

• Amend NWI2050+ as necessary. 

 

Timeline: Ongoing. 

 

Contributors: Tom Vander Woude, Eman Ibrahim, Mitch Barloga 

  

Deliverables: NWI 2050+ amendments as needed. 

 

 

400.2 | NWI 2050/NWI 2050+ Implementation, FY 2025 & 2026 

Description: Study, research, plan, and implement the vision and strategies of NWI 2050 and NWI 2050+, 

the long-range plans for the MPO. This task focuses on connecting transportation planning and 

programming for highway and transit, and other demonstrated needs from NWI 2050+, chiefly tasks that 

impact the region. 

 

This task will be focused on three main subtasks:  

 

400.2.1 Transit-oriented Development (TOD): 

The TOD subtask aims to bring vitality and livability to transit station areas and corridors. The activities of 

this subtask will support the implementation of NWI 2050+ and its strategies and economic development 

of the region. It supports linking transportation investments with land use decisions within the region. 

42



 

 

28 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Activities include:  

• Coordinate TOD areas with the TDD areas and TOD plans published by the Regional 

Development Authority (RDA) and Northern Indiana Commuter District (NICTD). 

• Identify high-priority TOD planning and implementation projects to improve accessibility and 

ensure equitable outcomes. 

• Coordinate, review, and score the NOFA applications for TOD planning and implementation. 

• Manage TOD plans/ implementation funded by NIRPC 

• Provide technical assistance for TOD planning. 

 

Deliverables: 

• Funded TOD areas as identified at the NIRPC funding Program.  

• Coordinated Regional TOD activities with the Regional Development Authority (RDA), Northern 

Indiana Commuter Transit District (NICTD), and public bus agencies. 

• To be completed by June 30, 2026 

 

400.2.2 Sensible Tools Handbook+ 

The Sensible Tools Handbook+ is an innovative tool to assist government officials, planning commissions, 

planners, and community developers make sensible decisions regarding future development needs. The 

2023 Sensible Tools Handbook+ is a continuation of the NIRPC 2007 Sensible Tools Handbook for 

Indiana, which carries on the same goal and remains a tool for local leaders to balance the current needs 

of their community and goals for the future sensibly. The 2023 handbook supplements the broad suite of 

planning tools and best practices to address new opportunities and challenges, such as hazard mitigation, 

resiliency, health, air quality, water quality, aging population, school siting, sustainability, affordable 

housing, energy, smart cities, and equity. The 2023 Handbook tools and best practices help educate 

planners, developers, and community leaders about community expectations for future development and 

best practices and guide municipal partners on land use, zoning, transportation, environment, and 

supportive policies. Activities include:  

• Introduce and present the Handbook to local government planners, elected officials, 

developers, and Purdue Extension planning staff. 

• Plan for a series of training workshops for planning commissioners and elected officials. 

• Engage in outreach and communications for report and training opportunities. 

• To be completed by June 30, 2026. 

 

Deliverables: 

• Workshops for planners, commissioners, and elected officials. 

• Presentations to various local government agencies. 

• To be completed by June 30, 2026. 

 

400.2.3 Commercial Repurposing 

Plan to repurpose big box retail, large commercial areas, and other uses, and large surface parking as 

mixed-use development, entertainment centers, distribution centers, logistics hubs, supply spaces, or 

public spaces. Repurposing regional malls has become a significant trend in response to changing 

consumer behavior, economic shifts, and the rise of e-commerce. The declining projections of North 

America’s shopping malls have attracted planners and developers to repurpose vacant malls; hundreds of 

traditional shopping malls have closed in recent decades, with many more closures expected in the coming 

years.  

 

As recommended in the NWI 2050+, the proposed area for commercial repurposing is the Southlake Mall 

area and its surface parking. The Southlake Mall area, locate near the intersection of I-65 and US 30, is 

the most expansive commercial concentration in Northwest Indiana, but it has gaps and a large amount of 

underused land. This creates a major opportunity for the evolution of a true regional center that is 

something more than the disconnected aggregation of major retailing that exists today. However, 

transforming vacant malls and surface parking areas requires careful planning and consideration of 

43



 

 

29 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

various factors. The transformation can depend on various factors such as location, accessibility, safety, 

community needs, and local zoning regulations. Activities include:  

• Evaluate accessibility, utilities, and infrastructure. 

• Investigate housing and land use needs. 

• Determine zoning regulations and land use restrictions and hurdles. 

• Work with local authorities. 

 

Deliverables: 

• A future outlook for the Southlake Mall area. 

• Defined planning area. 

• A scope for land use and accessibility plan. 

 

400.3 | Regional Land Use Planning 

Description: Support community-based transportation and land use projects that bring vitality to downtown areas, 

neighborhoods, transit station areas, commercial cores, and transit corridors. Identify land use patterns needed 

for regional planning to address the relationship to all modes of transportation. Identify studies and planning 

activities of development and redevelopment projects that achieve connected development patterns linking 

transportation, housing, jobs, and services and maximize the development potential of existing infrastructure and 

regional facilities. 

 

Outline an implementation plan and actions needed to accomplish the goals and objectives of the Land Use and 

Housing section of the NWI 2050+. The Implementation plan will include tasks and actions from the scope to the 

budget. It will include implementing regional strategies that link transportation, land use planning, and economic 

development considerations. Develop a framework that provides regional consistency on issues of common 

importance and functional compatibility while allowing individual entities to retain their individual and 

autonomous authority. Provide support to the Land Use Committee. Examine housing affordability and identify 

housing needs at the regional level. Modify and develop criteria for the NOFA applications and manage the NOFA 

applications of planning, TOD, and quality of place. Participate in and contribute to local governments planning 

activities, including technical assistance as needed by designation of a Transit Development District (TDD) 

committee established by the Regional Development Authority (RDA). 

Activities: 

• Identify opportunity areas within the region. 

• Develop favorable planning and regulatory practices for middle and high-density development at 

appropriate locations. 

• Track Infill development in the last ten years within the region and, more specifically, older 

communities. 

• Perform housing analysis and identify housing needs at the regional level. 

• Create a community housing snapshot. 

• Access to parks and open space in EJ areas. 

• Map and analyze population, housing, and jobs data in walkable and transit areas. 

• Identify corridors that could be re-envisioned according to the principles of corridor urbanism. That 

could include higher density transit nodes, mixed-use infill, secondary street network, and managed 

access management. 

• Develop favorable planning and regulatory practices for middle and high-density development at 

appropriate locations. 

• Continue to staff and support the Land Use Committee 

• Continue to support linking transportation investments with land use decisions in NWI. 

44



 

 

30 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

• Continue to update the regional existing and future land use maps as well as the zoning map. 

• Continue to provide local governments with technical assistance. 

• Review and evaluate Corridor planning, regional land use plans, and TOD activities.  

• Participate in training, learning sessions, and conferences on the topics of land use planning, 

transportation, TOD, Corridor planning, and housing.  

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Eman Ibrahim 

 

Deliverables:  

• Community-based housing snapshot. 

• Identified Infill areas in older communities and main centers. 

• Recommendations and a map of opportunity areas. 

• Identified best regulatory practices for middle and high-density development at appropriate 

locations. 

• Identified corridors suitable to the Corridor Urbanism concept, including higher density transit 

nodes, mixed-use infill, secondary street network, and managed access management. 

• Four meetings of the land use committee. These will occur quarterly. 

• Recommendations for the NOFA planning and construction projects. This is an ongoing activity. 

• Local government assistance activities.  

 

 

400.4 | Surface Transportation Planning 

Description: Study, research, plan, and implement the improvement of the surface transportation network 

within the region for roadway corridors, Intelligent Transportation Systems, and safety and security. This 

includes:  

 

• Convene stakeholders impacted by INDOT's corridor studies and its associated projects to educate 

Local Public Agencies and other stakeholders about opportunities to incorporate their expectations into 

the INDOT projects.  

• Corridor-based strategies from NWI 2050+ and NIRPC's Regional Corridors Study will continue to be 

discussed at Surface Transportation Committee meetings. 

• Analyze corridors that could benefit from corridor studies, particularly arterials that cross jurisdictional 

boundaries, and establish reports and workplans on convening stakeholders along these corridors in 

the hopes of securing funding for additional corridor studies. 

• Intelligent Transportation Systems: 

o Meet the federal requirements for Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) as they pertain to a 

Transportation Management Area (TMA) and fulfill the requirements for a Regional ITS 

Architecture and the monitoring, updating, and implementing that Regional ITS Architecture. 

Keep the Regional ITS Architecture current. Educate ITS project sponsors about their 

requirements for a system engineering analysis. 

• Research, data collection, and development related to Traffic Incident Management (TIM). 

• Continually update Functional Classification map by proactively recommending corridors to be 

reclassified and responding to community requests. 

• Asset Management Planning: 

o Collect NIRPC municipalities' and counties' asset management plans and any asset 

management data they may have to support those plans. Establish a working group of asset 

45



 

 

31 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

management planning on how NIRPC can best combine Local Public Agencies' asset 

management planning efforts (or at least those willing to opt-in) to prepare Local Public 

Agencies better to more strategically apply for future Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) and 

other funding opportunities in such a way as for them to be most successful and appropriately 

staggered. 

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Scott Weber 

 

Deliverables: Social media posts about meetings with stakeholders impacted by corridor plans and how 

their desires are incorporated into future project scopes, updated Regional ITS Architecture, reports 

analyzing potential corridors for future corridor plans, adoption of annual Safety Performance Measure 

Targets, updated Functional Classification Map. 

 

 

400.5| Environmental Linkages Planning  

Description: Identify areas in which transportation planning and the environment intersect in the region. 

Plan for enhancement and mitigation opportunities. Facilitate transportation planning coordination with 

environmental and natural resource planning partners. Ensure that NIRPC's long-range transportation 

plans are consistent with environmental resource agency plans. General environmental mitigation planning 

and coordination with regulatory agencies will be included in this task. Identify transportation infrastructure 

vulnerability to climate change and extreme weather. Task includes:  

• Coordinate planning with agencies and conservation partners on transportation-related 

environmental issues such as invasive species management, native landscaping and trees, and 

water quality and quantity management.   

• Continue participating in agency and partner efforts to understand wildlife mortality and plan 

projects to reduce impacts.   

• Continue participating in state agency and partner efforts to develop the Indiana State Wildlife 

Action Plan. 

• Encourage and assist local governments in inventorying, planning, maintaining, and expanding a 

robust tree canopy, particularly along streets.   

• Publish Living Streets green infrastructure design guidance as an interactive online tool on the 

NIRPC website.   

• Maintain mapping and analysis of natural resources that underlay the region's transportation 

infrastructure. 

• FHWA Vulnerability Assessment Guidance 

Timeline: Ongoing 

Contributors: Kathy Luther, Jennifer Birchfield 

Deliverables: Publication of Living Streets' green infrastructure design guidance as an interactive online 

tool on the NIRPC website. 

 

400.6 | Planning for Climate Challenges 

 

Description: This task will evaluate the resiliency of the transportation network as it relates to 

46



 

 

32 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

environmental and other disruptive influences. It includes: 

 

• Work with Drive Clean Indiana, NIPSCO, and INDOT NEVI Plan to grow EV infrastructure and promote EV 

transition. 

• Maintain and Update Regional Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory.     

• Monitor and analyze performance, emission change, and carbon sequestration over time.    

• Provide technical support to local governments toward developing and implementing local Climate 

Action Plans.   

• Support outreach and training related to climate and resiliency related portions of the Sensible Tools 

Handbook+.  

• Monitor and analyze the implementation of best practices in emission reduction, emission mitigation, 

risk reduction, and resilience adaptation.    

• Analyze the impacts of climate change on transportation infrastructure and plan for adaptation.  

• Support LGAs in resiliency and adaptation planning efforts. 

• Continue working with LPAs and conservation partners to encourage using vegetative tree buffers to 

reduce health risks from roadside emissions and increasing hot weather events.    

• Identify adaptation targets and requirements for NIRPC-funded local transportation projects. 

Timeline: Ongoing; Analysis of the impacts of climate change on transportation infrastructure (target date 

June 30, 2025) and adaptation Framework (target date June 30, 2026). 

 

Contributors: Kathy Luther, Jen Birchfield, Scott Weber, Eman Ibrahim 

 

Deliverables: Climate Action Planning Regional Framework for Northwest Indiana, Analysis of the impacts 

of climate change on transportation infrastructure and adaptation Framework.  

 

 

400.7| Freight Planning 

Description: Implement the freight recommendations from NWI 2050 and NWI 2050+, convening 

stakeholders, producing regional and corridor-level plans, recommending projects, and supporting 

stakeholder efforts to improve the impact of freight on the economy as well as mitigate its negative 

impacts on communities and the environment. Potential activities include: 

• Strengthening the considerations of freight issues in developing project selection criteria. 

• Assisting Local Public Agencies with identifying freight funding opportunities. 

• Coordinating with freight and economic development organizations such as Conexus Indiana, the 

Northwest Indiana Forum, and Center of Workforce Innovations to communicate NWI 2050+ freight 

recommendations in their outreach efforts and activities. 

• Working with economic development organization partners on developing freight-related workforce 

training programs. 

• Communicating with, and assisting Local Public Agencies on, applying for and administering 

discretionary grants such as Railroad Crossing Elimination grants, Mega and INFRA grants, RAISE 

grants, Charging and Fueling Infrastructure grants, etc. 

• Investigating innovative technological solutions to improve freight such as truck parking information 

management systems, railroad highway crossing gate management systems, freight signal priority, etc. 

• Partnering with INDOT to fund a truck parking study. 

• Incorporating a freight component into ongoing and future corridor studies. 

• Improving the US 12/20 corridor traveling experience for all road users by rerouting and better 

accommodating trucks as well as improving truck access to Cleveland Cliffs-Burns Harbor. 

47



 

 

33 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

• Assisting communities on improving at-grade rail crossings and their impacts, especially environmental 

justice communities 

• Partnering with the Gary/Chicago International Airport and others to conduct an air cargo study. 

• Partnering with the Port of Indiana-Burns Harbor on improving multimodal and truck access. 

• Incorporating a freight element into NIRPC’s resiliency planning efforts. 

• Continuing to implement the E-commerce in Northwest Indiana regional plan. 

 

Timeline: Ongoing 

  

Contributors: NIRPC Staff  

  

Deliverables: Corridor plans that include a freight component, truck parking study, at-grade crossing impact 

analyses and reports, transportation infrastructure resiliency plan with a freight component, e-commerce 

subarea plans and implementation efforts. 
 

 

400.8| Safety Planning 

Description: NIRPC will collect and analyze regional crash data, format it for presentation to committees 

and stakeholders. NIRPC will develop a scope of work and complete a regional safety plan.  

 

Timeline: Data to be collected in FY 2025; Plan to be completed no later than end of FY 2026.  

 

Contributors: Grace Benninger, Stephen Hughes, Eman Ibrahim, Kevin Polette, Scott Weber 

 

 

  

48



 

 

34 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

500 | Multi-modal Planning 

 

Salaries and Overhead 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$348,312.90 $200,527.13 $255,985.54 $818,254.06 

Non-Federal $87,078.23 $50,131.78 $63,996.38 $204,563.51 

Total $435,391.13 $250,658.91 $319,981.92 $1,022,817.57 
     

2.5% Complete Streets Set-Aside (salaries and overhead) 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$0.00 $48,002.53 $0.00 $48,002.53 

Non-Federal $0.00 $12,000.63 $0.00 $12,000.63 

Total $0.00 $60,003.16 $0.00 $60,003.16 

 

 

500.1 | Active Transportation Planning 

Description: Activities supporting the ongoing effort to plan for, fund, and implement bicycle and pedestrian 

infrastructure in Northwestern Indiana. This task includes meeting preparation and staffing the Ped, Pedal, 

and Paddle topical committee.  Activities fall under three primary categories:  

1. Active Transportation Technical Assistance: 

a. Collaborate with regional stakeholders, including municipalities, advocates, non-profits, and other 

partners, including Title VI, EJ, and ADA-protected communities. 

b. Maintain trail counters and reporting of counts. 

c. Develop maps highlighting future routes. 

d. Hold workshops, seminars, and webinars on important topics. 

e. Provide ongoing reports to INDOT regarding NIRPC, LPA, and transit operator recommendations on 

proposed project scopes. 

f. Create bicycle tourism strategies/plans that are tailored to specific stakeholders. 

g. Share safety resources with all regional jurisdictions. Recommend countermeasures and speed 

management strategies and offer training for local staff. 

2. Active Transportation Data Collection and Analysis: 

a. Establishment of performance measure baselines for non-motorized transportation policy and 

projects as identified in the G+B 2020 Plan and NWI 2050+, 

b. Updating and printing of 2026 Greenways+Blueways Map, including public engagement ahead of 

final printing. Map to supplement online app. 

c. Mapping bicycle and pedestrian crash data in NWI. 

d. Walk access study: Planners will use GIS to prioritize the development of a sidewalk inventory. 

Interns will use web-based tools like Google Maps to assess access to key connectivity areas. 

e. Promote Vision Zero policies for improved pedestrian safety: Set specific regional traffic safety 

goals and measure and report progress. Measure causes of serious crashes and focus on 

equitable investments.  

3. Active Transportation Public Engagement: 

a. Regular social media posts; podcasts; NIRPC public presentations; online educational materials. 

Acquire placards to help communities mark the United States Bicycle Trail routes. 

49



 

 

35 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

In FY 2025-2026 staff will focus the above efforts on the following:  

• Elevated trail feasibility study: examine potential for multi-use trail conversion of an abandoned 

elevated rail corridor in Gary, Indiana. Conduct public outreach with LPAs on neighborhood feedback 

regarding the project. Produce documentation of strategies to develop trail and neighborhood 

revitalization policies. Proceed with implementation if a project is viable. 

• Trail Oriented Development: Advocate and educate LPAs about trail-oriented development, potentially 

contracting with a consultant in FY 2026 to develop a Regional Trails Town Plan.  

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Mitch Barloga 

 

Deliverables: Updated Greenways + Blueways map, Ped, Pedal and Paddle Committee meeting materials 

and presentations, trail user counts.  

 

500.2 | Transit Planning 

Description: Plan and coordinate regional transit, provide a forum for transit investment decisions, assist 

transit operators with technical assistance, and oversee administrative processes to guarantee an ongoing 

commitment to funding transit. Execute the processes FTA requires to secure funding for transit 

investments in NWI. This task includes: 

• Participate in the annual apportionment split with Chicago urbanized area transit providers, principally 

the Regional Transit Authority (RTA):  

o Draft Annual Split Letters 

• Facilitate funding processes/decisions in an open, participatory manner. 

• Develop quarterly meeting materials and minutes for the Transit Operators Roundtable. 

• Ensure timely and accurate completion of federal transit grants. Continue the implementation of 

regional transit planning initiatives.  

• Participate in the project selection/NOFA process for the 2026-2030 TIP.  

• Encourage local investment into existing transit services.  

• Provide technical assistance to transit operators as needed and in technical areas identified in the 

previously completed Coordinated Transit Plan. 

• Review/Revise existing Title VI, LEP, Title II, and ADA procedures and documents to be consistent with 

2025 PEA Institutionalizing Equity, Accessibility, and Safety. 

Timeline: Ongoing 

 

Contributors: Stephen Hughes, Kevin Polette 

 

Deliverables: Annual Split letters for FTA Funding – These will be completed after splitting funds with the 

Northeastern Illinois Regional Transit Authority (RTA). 2024 2025 TAMP Update – These will be completed 

as required by federal law. 

 

Technical Assistance / Enhanced Data products: 

• South Shore wait time analysis 

• Bus stop coordination analysis 

• Enhanced route analysis 

• Recommendations on bus stop additions/removal 

• Bus route/stop ridership tracking 

• Identification of Micro-transit implementation strategies 

• Identification of possible Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) corridors 

50



 

 

36 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

• Ongoing 5310 program / Mobility Management strategy/partnership development 

• General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) Implementation 

• Identification of coordinated demand response pick-up and drop-off locations 

• Strategies leading to the development of consolidated dispatch between demand-response operators 

51



 

 

37 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

600A | Special Planning Activities 

 

  

600A Special Planning Activities    
Salaries and Overhead 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$230,428.00 $64,913.69 $66,861.10 $362,202.78 

Non-Federal $57,607.00 $16,228.42 $16,715.27 $90,550.70 

Total $288,035.00 $81,142.11 $83,576.37 $452,753.48 
     

Contractual and Salaries*- Road Safety Audits 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

HSIP $77,500.00     $192,888.89 

HSIP - Sec. 164   $77,500.00 $77,500.00   

Non-Federal $8,611.11 $0.00 $0.00 $48,222.22 

Total $86,111.11 $77,500.00 $77,500.00 $241,111.11 

*FY 2024: $77,500 contractual / $8,611 salaries and overhead 

 

Contractual - LPA Planning Assistance / Special Plans 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$0.00 $251,402.53 $0.00 $251,402.53 

Non-Federal $0.00 $62,850.63 $0.00 $62,850.63 

Total $0.00 $314,253.16 $0.00 $314,253.16 

 

 

600A.1 | Marquette Greenway 

Description: The Marquette Greenway represents a contiguous, 60-mile off road trail from south Chicago to 

New Buffalo, Michigan. The trail will touch three states, five counties, 15 cities and towns and one National 

and one State Park. NIRPC has championed this route since 2009 and continues to work with many 

stakeholders on the completion of this quality-of-life landmark. The objective of this task is to provide 

oversight to the design, engineering, and construction of portions of the Marquette Greenway in New 

Buffalo Township, MI; Michigan City, Portage, and Gary that have been funded through a state READI grant 

and a Federal RAISE grant. NIRPC has retained an engineering firm to act as project manager on behalf of 

the agency. NIRPC staff will manage the overall project, providing direction and guidance, coordinating 

meetings between NIRPC, LPAs, state, and Federal agencies, and providing oversight, and will manage the 

project manager contract, engineering contracts, and construction contracts.   

 

Timeline: Engineering of New Buffalo, MI and Michigan City segments to be completed in Q1 FY 25 and 

construction to begin in FY 25, engineering of Gary and Portage segments to be completed by end of FY 

26.  

 

Contributors: Mitch Barloga, Charles Bradsky, Consultant 

 

Deliverables: Begin preliminary engineering (design) for portions of the trail within the cities of Gary and 

52



 

 

38 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Portage; completion of engineering and environmental services and, commencement of construction in 

Michigan City, IN and Berrien County, MI. 

 

 

600A.2 | Road Safety Audits 

Description: Conduct Road Safety Audits (RSAs) in partnership with Northwest Indiana LPAs. NIRPC will  

contract with a with a qualified consultant to conduct multiple RSAs for its member municipalities. NIRPC 

will manage the contract and the project on behalf of its members. The project will include office meetings 

and field visits with municipal representatives and NIRPC staff and the development of a final report that 

includes RSA documents for multiple locations throughout Lake, Porter, and LaPorte counties in Indiana. 

The project will be completed in two phases over two years. Each phase shall include meetings, field work, 

and the development of a final RSA report. The budget for the contract is $77,500 for each year for a total 

contract of $155,000. The project is funded with federal Highway Safety Improvement Program funds.  
 

Timeline: First set of road safety audits to be completed first quarter of FY2025; Second set of road safety 

audits to be completed in fourth quarter of FY 2025. If successful, project will repeat in FY 2026. 

 

Contributors: Charles Bradsky, Kevin Polette, Consultant. 

 

Deliverables: Road Safety Audit reports for multiple communities.  

 
 

600A.3| LPA Planning Assistance/Special Plans 

Description: NIRPC will hold a call for local planning projects that implement the goals, objectives, and 

strategies of NWI 2050+. Projects could include corridor plans, complete streets plans, or other plans that 

integrate transportation with land use, environment, economic development etc. NIRPC staff will manage 

the selection of projects, procurement of consultants, and management of the project.  

 

Timeline: All projects are expected to commence and conclude in FY 25. Depending on the success of the 

program, a second round of projects may be completed in FY 26. 

 

Contributors: NIRPC staff and consultants 

 

Deliverables:   Call for projects, project selection, consultant contracts, and final plan documents.   

53



 

 

39 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

600B| Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 

 

 

Contractual, Supplies, and Equipment 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

CMAQ Flex $98,566.76 $360,000.00 $360,000.00 $818,566.76 

Non-Federal* $24,641.69 $90,000.00 $90,000.00 $204,641.69 

Total $123,208.45 $450,000.00 $450,000.00 $1,023,208.45 

*Local share to be funded by partners 

 

 

600B.1| Air Quality Public Education  

Description:  

This multi-year air quality public education program continues to target two primary audiences for air 

quality education. First, media purchases and materials are developed to promote a highly visible, 

ongoing effort to educate the residents of Lake, Porter, and LaPorte counties concerning their 

personal transportation choices and the relationship of those choices to air quality, health, and 

quality of life in the Region. Second, diesel fleet operators are provided education, outreach, and 

technical support to reduce emissions through vehicle replacement, upgrade, repowers, retrofits, idle 

management, maintenance, and driver training. Partner organization Drive Clean Indiana will receive 

a sub-grant from NIRPC to perform most of these tasks. NIRPC will retain procurement and 

purchasing of promotional materials and event costs for Partners for Clean Air. NIRPC will also 

complete all tasks described except for the following: NIRPC will continue to procure lunch totes, 

lanyards, and event sponsorships for NWI Partners for Clean Air and continue to promote active 

transportation as an emission-friendly alternative to driving through our continuously updated 

Greenways and Blueways Bike Maps and new phone application. NIRPC will provide oversight of the 

Drive Clean Indiana sub-grant with MPO Planning Administration funds. 

 
The program will continue to work with public officials, public and private diesel fleet owners and 

operators, private sector decision-makers, universities, educators, students, the media, and the 

general public on the air quality issues in the Region. In addition to educating for driving behavior 

changes, the program will promote environmental stewardship, foster intergenerational leadership 

and improve air quality and community health by encouraging the use of public transit and active 

transportation. The public education campaign is necessary to obtain public support, consensus, and 

participation to achieve and maintain national air quality standards as designated in the Clean  Air 

Act. 

 Media, Marketing, and Website - Drive Clean Indiana 

One major change to the program will be returning to the It All Adds Up to Cleaner Air NWI messaging 

used in the past. The new It All Adds Up to Cleaner Air NWI program will focus its education and 

outreach effort on the coordination/leverage of area resources and efforts to raise awareness of the 

importance of air quality forecasts, provide education on the effects of pollutants,   including ozone 

and particulate matter and encourage voluntary actions to reduce air pollution from transportation 

sources and promote moving toward cleaner air. In addition, a new website will be created to reflect 

this new brand and message. 

 

Active Transportation Adds up to Cleaner Air NWI -NIRPC 

NIRPC will continue to update, reprint, and promote active transportation as a healthy alternative 

54



 

 

40 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

to emission-generating vehicles through our popular Greenways and Blueways Map and new 

complimentary mobile application. This effort includes a biannual map update, reprint, and minor 

maintenance in the intervening years. 

 

NWI Green Fleets, Ports, Hospitals, and Schools - Drive Clean Indiana  

Drive Clean Indiana will continue to provide hands-on technical support, fleet inventories, training 

workshops, funding recommendations, and education to public and private fleet operators 

throughout NWI to help them find ways to reduce fuel use, emissions, and VMT through technology, 

vehicle replacements, and repowers, alternative fuels, idle reduction, and more. Increased 

emphasis on hospitals to reduce exposure of vulnerable populations to ambulance idling emissions 

will be new this year. 

 

NWI Partners for Clean Air –Drive Clean Indiana (DCI) and NIRPC 

DCI will provide hands-on participation and marketing support, handling Partners for Clean Air social 

media and assisting with event planning. NIRPC will continue to purchase promotional items  and 

sponsor events for this collaboration of business, industry, and public sector agencies striving to 

increase volunteer emission-reducing actions on Air Quality Action Days. 

Timeline: Ongoing 

Contributors: Kathy Luther & Jennifer Birchfield and Sub-Grantee: Drive Clean Indiana, 501(c)(3) 

Deliverables:   

● Increased knowledge and perception of air quality among Northwest Indiana residents, 

leaders, decision-makers, and businesses. 

● 75,000 Updated Bike maps printed and distributed. 

● 50 diesel fleet emissions and vehicle inventories. 

● Annual report of reduced emissions from participating fleet vehicles in the region. 

● 2,000 Partners for Clean Air lunch totes promoting clean air messaging. 

● Purchase promotional tire gauges, oil funnels, or other vehicle-related items for event 

distribution. 

● New It All Adds Up to Cleaner Air NWI Website. 

● 4 Targeted Audience Workshops. 

● Presence at a minimum of 10 regional events. 

● Increased social media metrics for It All Adds Up to Cleaner Air NWI and Partners for 

Clean Air. 
 

55



 

 

41 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

700 | Federal Transit Administration 5307 Funds 

 

 

  

700 FTA 5307 Funds 

Funding 
Source 

FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 TOTAL 

Federal 
PL/5307 

$0.00 $245,677.60 $254,584.80 $500,262.40 

Non-Federal $0.00 $61,419.40 $63,646.20 $125,065.60 

Total $0.00 $307,097.00 $318,231.00 $625,328.00 

 

 

700.1 | Sub-grantee Oversight 

Description: Carry out administrative responsibilities associated with Federal Transit Administration 

(FTA) grants, including monitoring and oversight of FTA-assisted transit services and procurement of 

FTA- funded capital equipment. NIRPC currently conveys Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 

5307 financial and capital assistance to the following seven (7) sub-grantees: East Chicago Transit, 

North Township, Opportunity Enterprises, Porter County Community Services, Southlake County 

Community Services, City of Valparaiso, and City of LaPorte. 

 

Specific activities include: Oversee requests and manages federal drawdowns using FTA’s Electronic 

Clearinghouse Operation (ECHO) System. Oversee preparation and processing of payments to 

vendors and sub-grantees and maintains grant-related records. Analyze federal and state regulations 

to identify compliance requirements. Develop and communicate plans, goals, strategies, and 

recommendations pertaining to external compliance requirements. Serve as a compliance manager 

for all 5307 sub-grantee functions, excluding financial management. Perform specific duties and 

responsibilities related to transit vehicles, services, and equipment procurement. Develop and 

communicate recommendations pertaining to procurement. Identify information needs and refers 

sub-grantees and other parties to appropriate authorities and sources of information. 

Timeline: Ongoing  

Contributors: Talaya Jones, Candi Eklund, Lisa Todd, and Ann Weitgenant 

Deliverables: Successful oversight and procurement activities according to FTA regulations so that 

each Triennial Review results in no findings or corrective actions in the areas in which NIRPC is 

reviewed. 

56



 

 

42 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

900 | General Management 

900.1 | General management of NIRPC, office + staff 

Description: The Commission receives funding from the three counties that comprise the region. A 

portion  of these local funds is utilized as matching funds for federal, state, and other funding 

sources received to perform work related to specific program objectives. This task provides the 

administrative support required to manage and coordinate all NIRPC planning and activities. The  

activities include agency-wide office management, personnel activities, clerical support, 

administrative documents, record keeping, printing, graphics, procurement, and coordination of 

activities. NIRPC’s Cost Allocation Plan explains the indirect costs associated with this task. 

General accounting system: 

The Commission is audited annually by the Indiana State Board of Accounts in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133 and budgets on a calendar year basis as  is 

required by the State of Indiana. The Commission’s accounting system has been designed to 

accommodate mandated requirements established by the State of Indiana, to deal with multiple 

funded cost objectives, and to satisfy the requirements of various federal funding agencies. The 

Commission utilizes several reimbursement methods, including cost reimbursement and electronic 

funds transfers. The Commission strives to maintain a high level of consistency in its accounting 

procedures. 

Cost allocation policies 

The costs of goods and services identifiable with specific projects are charged directly to those 

projects when such costs are incurred. Costs not specifically identifiable with a single cost objective 

are allocated to all projects uniformly, as provided for within the cost allocation plan prepared 

annually. 

 
Three categories of costs are allocated. The first is leave costs, including NIRPC’s cost of providing 

vacation, sick, personal, holiday, and other leave (jury duty, military, and funeral). The second is 

fringe benefits which include the employer’s cost of providing various types  of insurance, retirement 

benefits, and social security taxes. The third is other indirect costs, including those related to general 

management, finance and accounting, office operation and maintenance, general clerical, and 

printing functions. It also includes an aggregate amount of depreciation representing the expiration 

in the service life of fixed assets of the general fund consisting primarily of office machines and 

furniture, which is attributable to and charged as an expense during the reporting period. 

Components of the cost allocation plan 

Data is collected relative to allocated costs through the accounting system. Allocation rates are 

determined for the fiscal year and entered into the accounting system, which then calculates out 

allocation costs for each program. 

 

Fringe Benefits 

Fringe benefit rate is determined by adding the cost of leave salaries and fringe benefit expenses 

and dividing the total by the number of direct salaries and wages. The cost of leave salaries consists 

of the following: 

● Vacation leave 

● Personal/sick leave 

● Holiday leave 

57



 

 

43 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

● Jury, other, military, and funeral leave 

Non-leave fringe includes various types of employee insurance, retirement, and tax costs and is the  

aggregate of all charges for the following purposes: 

 

● Public Employee Retirement Fund - employer contributions 

● Group Health Insurance - employer contributions 

● Term life and disability insurance 

● Social Security and Medicare taxes (FICA) - employer contributions 

● Workers’ Compensation insurance 

● Unemployment insurance 

 
Indirect costs 

The other indirect cost rate is determined by taking the total projected other indirect costs 

times the total direct personnel base. The total direct personnel base is the total direct salary 

base plus the direct fringe benefits. Other indirect costs consist of the following: 

● Allocated salaries for management, administrative, & support salaries 

o The salary costs of those employees where activities provide for the reception, 

clerical, accounting, administration, bookkeeping, printing, graphics, 

maintenance, and personnel support functions of the Commission are 

necessary to carry out grant programs but are not directly attributable to grant 

execution. 

● Operational, occupancy, and maintenance costs 

o Office lease 

o Property insurance 

o Building maintenance 

o Utilities 

o Copier & press maintenance 

o Computer maintenance 

o Telephone service 

o Other equipment maintenance 

● Other management, administrative, and support costs 

o General use office supplies 

o Travel, mileage, & postage 

o Legal services 

o Audit and accounting services 

o Human resources 

o Other contractual 

 

Timeline: Ongoing and permanent 

 

Contributors: Ty Warner and Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission 

58



 

 

44 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

Other Significant Regional Planning Activities 

 
The planning activities listed below highlight transportation planning initiatives throughout  the 

region. 

 

Gary Public Transportation Corporation 

Short and long-range transit planning activities designed to expand mobility options in Gary and 

Northwest Indiana. Items being explored are continued Rapid Bus and enhanced transit expansion, 

microtransit in western and southern Lake County, management and expansion of Cycle219 

bikeshare and adjacent active transportation connections to transit, study of fare collection 

modernization, outreach and marketing, transit- oriented facilities and development, planning for a 

relief facility, ITS, and civil rights planning. 

Northern Indiana Commuter Transportation District 

NICTD is in need of updating its Strategic Plan.  Its prior 20-year strategic plan included major 

milestones like completion of Double Track, West Lake, and the South Bend realignment.  With most 

of those tasks near completion or underway it is looking towards the next update.  The next plan 

needs to be worked through setting the future goals of the railroad.  This will likely include further 

expansion of the double track project, and potentially further extension along the Monon Corridor. 

 

At this time no funding is identified for this plan but it is work NICTD intends to begin in the near 

future. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



 

 

45 | P a g e   N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P   

 
 

 

 

60



46 | P a g e N I R P C  F Y  2 0 2 5 - 2 0 2 6  U P W P 61


	1-Full Commission Meeting Agenda 4.18.24
	2-Executive Board Meeting Minutes 3.21.24
	3-2024 Committee Restructure_April 18
	2015 NIRPC Committee Structure:
	2024 NIRPC Committee Structure:

	5-Finance & Personnel Committee Minutes 1.18.24
	7-TPC Minutes 2.6.24
	8.1-RES 24-05 -  FY 2025-2026 UPWP
	8.2-RES 24-05 FY 2025-2026 UPWP_ Adoption memo 2024.04.01
	8.3-FY 2025-2026 UPWP_DRAFT INDOT REVIEW 2024.04.01



